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CHICAGO }i4arch 14.20t2

To the President and Members of the City Council:

Your Committee on Finance having had under consideration

An ordinance authorizing the City Council to appropriate the Remaining Third Area Revenue for
Special Service Area Number 8.

02012_663

Having had the same under advisement, begs leave to report and recommend that your
Honorable Body pass the proposed

Ordinance Transmitted Herewith
This recommendation \ryas concurred in by _(a

of members of the committee with dissenting vote(S

Respecffully submitted

Chairman



ORDINANCE

WHEREAS' spec¡al service areas may be established pursuant to Article V¡, sections6(l) and 7(6) of the constitution of the State- 
"i 

lrr¡""¡r,lnd pursuant to the provisions of thespecial serviceArea Tax Law, 35 it-cs zoolzT-5 ã-G., as amended from time to time andpursuant to the property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200t1_1Ëseq., as amended from time to tíme; and
WHEREAS' on Septem ber 14,1?89,. the city council of the city of chicago (the ,,citycouncil") enacted an ordinance which estabiished ;; ;" known ano oLsrgnated as city ofchicago special service Rrea ruumoer I and authorizãå;"-l;üJ',i ffi;ar tax not to exceedan annual rate of forty-one hundredths of one Ë;";;ìi; f/o) ofthe equarized assessed varue ofthe taxable propglY therein to proviàe certain !p""iålt'"ricés in 

"no 
ioiinì Area for a period of

åffiä'"tliri läTfil,iJ;jïriill åooition to tï,e sËrvùes provideo oy anJto rhe c*y or

WHEREAS, the lnitial Levy period expired; and

WHEREAS' on Novem ber 17,1993, the city council enacted an ordinance which againestablished a special service area known and desigîateá as city of chicago special serviceArea Number I to provide special services in the áiea ìn'aooitioÁ to ;;;Ë; provided generaltyby the city and authorizing a levy oi"n ,nnral tax not to exceed forty-one hundredths of onepercent ('41o/o) of the equalizedãssessed uSlyu or"li òiop"rty withín the area to provide suchservices foran additionai period of 10 years (the'second Levy period,,); and

WHEREAS, the Second Levy period expired; and

WHEREAS' on December 17,2003, the city council enacted an ordinance which againestablished a special service area knôwn and desigîateJ as city of chicago special serviceArea Number I (th-e 'Thiç Area") to piovide speciaì ,"ri"", in the ïhírd Àrea in addition toservices provided gener3JtV by the City ltfre "t'¡;ü,=" ê'pecial Services,,) and author izing alevy of an annual tax not to eiceed thà sum of forty-onà hundredths of one percent (.41%) ofthe equalized assessed value of thetåxable prop"hv *itn¡n.the area to provide such servicesfor an additionar period of 10 years ltne "rniro services Tax,,); and

WHEREAS' the city desired to alter the boundaries of the Third Area and to alter theauthorized Third Area Speóiat Services; and

WHEREAS' 
9L November 16, 

?211,-the 
city counc-it determined (a) that it was in thebest interests of the..city to (i) terminãte the authoriiat¡ãñ or the levy of the îh¡ro serv¡ces Taxfor the Third Area, (ii) réestâúrisn an ãìea to be known 

"nJ 
desig.nated as city of chicagospecial service Area Number I (the Êourth Arer"¡ witt', reconstituted nounoár¡es, and (iii)authorize a special annual serv¡cès tax (the "Fourth Ár"" é"r¡ces Tax,,) for a period of fifteen(15) years within the Fourth Rrea tortne provision of certain special services (the ,,Fourth 

Areaspecial services"); (b) that the Fourth Àrea ¡s cont¡guãus; åno (.) that the F;jir' nr." specialservices are in addition to municipãiservices pr";ü;l; ànd to the city generary; and
WHEREAS' on November 16, 2011, the city council further authorízed the levy of the

-l -
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Fourth Area services Tax for tax year 2011 and the execution of an agreement with a serviceprovider for the provisíon of the Fourth Area Special Services in and for the Fourth Area in fiscalyear 2012; and

WHEREAS, certaín funds in the amount of $3g2,06g exist which are attributable to sums

:ffi"t 
in prevíous tax years from the Thírd services Tax'(the "Remaining Thirã Area Revenue,,);

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appropriate the Remainíng Third Area Revenueand authorize the execution of an agreement with a service provider for tñe provision of ThirdArea Special Services in the Third Area during fiscal yéaiàolz; now, therefore,

Be lt ordained by the Gity councir of the Gity of chicago:

sEcTloN l. lncorporation of Prearylbles- The preambles of this ordinance are herebyincorporated into thís text as if set out herein in full.

SEcTloN 2. Appropriations. Based on the recommendation of the Department ofHousing and Economic Development, there is hereby appropriated the following sum in theamount and for the purp-oses necessary to provide íf¡irO Rrea Special Services in and for theThird Area indicated as follows:

THIRD AREA - SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER 8

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA BUDGET

For the fiscal year beginning January 1,2012 and ending December 31,20i2.

EXPENDITURES

Service Provider Ag reement
for the provision of Third Area
Special Services

TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST

SOURCE OF FUNDING
Remaining Third Area Revenue

$382,068

$382,068

$382,068

SEcTloN 3. gefvice.Provider Aqreement. The Commissioner of the Department ofHousing and Economic.DevelopmentlÚrJconrmissioner"), or a designee of the commissioner,are each hereby authorized, subject to approval by the Coíporation Counsel as to form andlegality, to enter into, execute and deliver an agreement with Lakeview East Chamber ofCommerce, an lllinois not-for-profit corporation, in substantially the form attached hereto as
-2-
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EXHIBIT 1

Service Provider Agreement

See attached pages.

-4-
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Agreement for Special Service Area #g

between

the CITy OF CHICAGO

and

LAKEVIEW EAST CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

effective January l, 2}l2through December 31, 2012

Rahm Emanuel
Mayor
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AGREEMENT

This Agreement for the provision of services in Special Service Area Number 8 is entered
into on 2012by and between Lakeview East Chamber of Commerce, an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation ("Contractor"), and the City of Chicago ("City"), a municipal
corporation and home rule unit of local govertment existing under the Constitution of the State
of lllinois, acting through the Department of Housing and Economic Development.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article VII, $$ 6(l) and
7(6) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the Special
Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200127-5 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, on December 17,2003,the City Council of the City of Chicago ("City
Council") established a special service area known and designated as "Special Service Area
Number 8" ("Area"), to provide special services in addition to those services provided generally
by the City ("Special Services"). On November 16,201l, the City Council terminated the
authorization of the levy of an annual ad valorem real property tax in the Area sufficient to
produce revenues required to provide those Special Services but not to exceed .410% of the
equalized assessed value of all property within the Area ("Service Tax"), all as provided in the
Establishment Ordinance (hereinafter defined), and established a new area now known and
designated as Special Service Area Number 8 with reconstituted boundaries; and

WHEREAS, prior to the termination of the authorization of the levy of the Service Tax,
certain revenue derived from the Service Tax was collected but not otherwise appropriated for
expenditure to provide Special Services within the Area (the "service Tax Funds"); and

WHEREAS, on ,2012, the City Council appropriated the Service Tax Funds
and authorized their expenditure to provide Special Services within the Area (the "Appropriation
Ordinance"); and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide that the Contractor, beginning on January l,
2012, and continuing until December 31,2072, may use those Service Tax Funds to provide
certain Special Services, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to provide
such Special Services in the Area and the Contractor is ready, willing and able to enter into this
Agreement to provide the Special Services to the full satisfaction of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this
Agreement, the City and the Contractor agree as follows:

ARTICLE I INCORPORATION OF RECITALS



The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings for purposes of this
Agreement:

"Agreement" means this Special Service Area Agreement, including all exhibits attached
to it and incorporated in it by reference, and all amendments, modifications or revisions made in
accordance with its terms.

"Commissioner" means the Commissioner of the Department of Housing and Economic
Development or a duly.authorized representative of the Commissioner of the Department of
Housing and Economic Development.

"Construction" means that work of a nature constituting "public works" as defined in
820ILCS 130/2, such as landscaping and building activities, including but nor limited to,
physical building improvements, installations and other fixed works, but does not include pre-
development work (design and preparation of specifications).

"Days" means business days in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar.

"Department" means the City of Chicago Department of Housing and Economic
Development.

"Establishment Ordinance" means the ordinance enacted by City Council on November
16,2011, authorizing imposition of the Service Tax and setting forth the Special Servíces to be
provided in the Area.

"Risk Management Division" means the Risk Management Division of the Department
of Finance which is under the direction of the Comptroller of the City and is charged with
reviewing and analyzing insurance and related liability matters for the City.

"Security Firm" means a business entity certified by the State of Illinois pursuant to the
Private Detective, Private Alarm, Private Security, Fingerprint Vendor, and Locksmith Act of
2004,2251LC5 447 el seq., and whose employees are licensed by the State of lllinois.

"Selryices" means> collectively, the services, duties and responsibilities described in
Article 3 and Exhibit I (Scope of Services & Budget) of this Agreement and any revisions
thereof and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the
standard of performance required in this Agreement.



"Service Tax Funds" means the amount actually collected pursuant to the Service Tax
and appropriated for expenditure hereunder pursuant to the Appropriation Ordinance.

"Special Serryice Area Commission ('SSAC')" means the body established pursuzurt to
the Establishment Ordinance to prepare the Budget, identifu a Contractor and supervise the
provision of the Special Services in the Area.

"Subcontractor" means any person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide
any part of the Services, including subcontractors of any tier, subconsultants of any tier, iuppliers
and materialmen, whether or not in privity with the Contractor

"Surplus Funds", also referred to as "Carry-Over Funds," means those Service Tax
Funds already collected and disbursed to the Contractor in prior years for the provision of Special
Services in the Area which remain unspent, including any interest earned thereon.

ARTICLE 3 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR

3.01 Scope of Services \

The Services which the Contractor shall provide during the term of this Agreement
include, but are not limited to, those described in this Article 3 and in Exhibit 1 which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth here. The SSAC reserves the right to
require the Contractor to perform revised services that are within the general scope of services of
this Agreement and of the Special Services identified in the Establishment Ordinance subject to
the same terms and conditions herein. Revised services are limited to changes or revisions to the
line items in the Budget, do not affect the maximum compensation and require the prior written
approval of the SSAC. The SSAC may, by written notice to the Department and the Contractor,
delete or amend the figures contained and described in the Budget attached hereto as Exhibit I
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. The Contractor shall provide the
Services in accordance with the standards of perfornance set forth in Section 3.02.

3.02 Standard of Performance

The Contractor shall perform all Services required of it with that degree of skill, care and
diligence normally shown by a contractor performing services of a scope, purpose and magnitude
comparable with the nature of the Services to be provided hereunder. The Contractor shall at all
times use every reasonable effort on behalf of the City to assure timely and satisfactory rendering
and completion of its Services.

The Contractor shall at all times act in the best interests of the City consistent with the
professional obligations assumed by it in entering into this Agreement. The Contractor shall
perform all Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to the
full satisfaction of the SSAC. The Contractor shall furnish efflrcient business administration and
supervision to render and complete the services at reasonable cost.



The Contractor shall assure that all Services that require the exercise of professional skills
or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable
discipline and appropriately licensed, if required by law. The Contractor remains responsible for
the professional and technical accuracy of all Services provided, whether by the Contractor or its
Subcontractors or others on its behalf.

If the SSAC determines that the Contractor has failed to comply with the foregoing
standards, the Contractor shall perform again, at its own expense, all Services requireà to be
reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure. Any review, approval, acceptance or
payment for any or all of the Services by the City does not relieve the Cãntractor of its
responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy of its Services. This provision in no
way limits the City's rights against Contractor, either under this Agreement, at iu* o, in equity.

3.03 Personnel

A. Key Personnel

The Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving a fully executed copy of this
Agreement, assign and maintain during the term of this Agreement and any extension thereof an
adequate staff of competent personnel, who are fully equipped, licensed as appropriate, available
as needed, qualified and assigned to perform the Services. Contractor shall påy tn" salaries and
wages due all its employees performing Services under this Agreement unconáitionally and at
least once a month without deduction or rebate on any account, except only for such payroll
deductions as are mandatory by law or are permitted under applicablè law and regulations.

B. Prevailing Wages

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with g20 ILCS
130/0.01 et seq= regarding the payment of the general prevailing rate of hourly wage for all
laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by or on behalf of the Contractoiand all
Subcontractors in cor¡rection with any and all Construction work. The prevailing rates of wages
applicable at the time of execution of,this Agreement are include¿ in pxfriUit S to this
Agreement, which is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth h*i*

c. Illinois workers, veterans preference and Steel products

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with the
Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, 30ILCS 570i0.01 et seq., the Veterans
Preference Act, 330ILCS 55/0.01 et seq,, and the Steel Products Procurernìntã"t, 35 ILCS
30/56511et seq.



3.04 Nondiscrimination

(a) Contractor

(Ð Federal Requirements

Contractor must not engage in unlawful employment practices, such as (l) failing or
refusing to hire or discharging any individual, or otherwise discriminating againri *y
individual with respect to compensation or the terms, conditions or priviieges of the
individual's employment, because of the individual's race, color, relìgion, sex, age,
handicap/disability or national origin; or (2) limiting, segregating or ðlassifuing 

-
Contractor's employees or applicants for employment inany *uy thut *ouid deprive or
tend to deprive any individual of employment opportuniti", o, olh".*ise adversely affect
the individual's status as an employee, because of the individual's race, color, religion,
sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin.

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Civil Rights Act of
1964' 42U.5.C. $ 2000e et seq. (1981), as amended *¿ ttt" Civil Rights Act of l9gl,
P.L- 102-166. Attention is called to: Exec. OrderNo. 1 1246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319
(1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. $ 2000e note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11375, 32
Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (197g); Age
Discrimination Act,42 U.S.C. $$ 6101-6106 (1931); Age Discrimination in Employmeit
Act,29 u.s.c. $g 621-34; Rehabilitation Act of t973,29 u.s.c. çç 7g3_7g4 (198i);
Americans with Disabilities Act,42 U.S.C. $12101 et seq.; 4l C.F.R. part 60 et seq.
(1990); and all other applicable federal statutes, regulations and other laws.

(iÐ State Requirements

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the lflinois Human
Rights Act,775ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.(l990), as u*.trd.d and any rules and regulations
promulgated in accordance with it, including the Equal Employment Opportrrrity Cluur",
44111. Admin. Code $ 750 Appendix A. Furthermore, Contracto, *.rrf óo-ply with the
PublicWorksEmploymentDiscrimination Act,775ILCS l0/0.01 etseq.(1990), as
amended, and all other applicable state statues, regulations and otherlaws.

(iii) City Requirements
Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Chicago Human Rights
Ordinance, ch'2-160, Section 2-160-010 et seq. of the Municipal Co¿e ãf Cnicago
(1990), as amended, and all other applicable city ordinances and rules.



(b) Subcontractors

Contractor must incorporate all of this Section 3.04by reference in all agreements entered
into with any suppliers of materials, furnisher of services, Subcontractors of any tier, and labor
organizations that furnish skilled, unskilled and craft union skilled labor, or that may provide any
such materials, labor or services in connection with this Agreement. Further, Contractor must
furnish and must cause each of its Subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as
requested by the federal, state and local agencies charged with enforcing such laws and
regulations, including the chicago commission on Human Relations.

3.05 Insurance

The Contractor shall comply with the insurance provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 3
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, or such other insurance provisions as
may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk Management Division. If the Contractor
enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm such Security Firm shall comply with the insurance
provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein,
or such other insurance provisions as may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk
Management Division. If the Contractor subcontracts with a Subcontractor other than a Security
Firm, such Subcontractor shall comply with the Contractor insurance provisions attached hereto
as Exhibit 3.

The Risk Management Division may waive or reduce any of the insurance requirements
set forth herein.

3.06 IndemnifÏcation

A. On written notice from the City of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising
under this Agreement as defined in this Section 3.06, the Contractor shall defend, indemnifl', and
hold completely harmless the City Indemnitees from and against such Losses, regardless of
whether Contractor challenges the City's belief. The defense, indemnification and hold
harmless obligations of the Contractor toward City Indemnitees remain an affirmative obligation
of Contractor following the City's notice of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising under
this Agreement, unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction finally determines otherwise
and all opportunities for appeal have been exhausted or have lapsed.

B. For pulposes of this Section 3.06

*City Indemnitees" means, individually and collectively, the City of Chicago, its
officials, agents, employees and SSAC members.

"Losses" means, individually and collectively, all kinds of liabilities, losses, suits,
claims, damages, judgments, fines, and demands, including all reasonable costs for investigation,



reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and experts' fees, arising by reason ofinjury or death of
any person, damage to properfy, patent or copyright infringement.

"Arising under this Agreement" means (i) arising out of awarding this Agreement, (ii)
arising out of the enforcement of this Agreement, including the enforcement of this
indemnification provision; (iii) arising out of or in connection with Contractor's performance or
non-performance of this Agreement (including the acts or omission of Contractor, its officers,
agents, employees, consultants, subcontractors, licensees, or invitees), any breach by any of them
of any warranty made under this Agreement, or any failure by any ofthem to meet any applicable
standard of performance under this Agreement; or (iv) any combination of any of the foregoing.

C- To the extent permissible by law, Contractor waives any limits on Contractor's
liability that it would otherwise have by virtue of the Worker's Compensation Act or any other
related law or judicial decision (such a.s Kotecki v. Cyclops Wetding Corporation, 146lll. 2d 155
(1991). The City, however, does not waive any limitations it *uy hurr"-on its liability under the
worker's compensation Act or under the Illinois pension code.

D. The City has the right, at its option and at its own expense, to participate in the
defense of any suit without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations undËr this indemnity
provision. The requirements set forth in this indemnity provision are separate from and not
limited by the amount of insurance Contractor is required to obtain under this Agreement or by
its bonds pursuant to other provisions in this Agreement. Further, the indemnitees contained in
this provision survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

3.07 Records and Audits

The Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered all documents, data, studies, reports,
findings or information to the SSAC promptly in accordance with the time limits prescribed
herein and if no time limit is specified, then upon reasonable demand therefore, or upon
termination or completion of the Services hereunder.

The Contractor agrees to adopt at its own expense such financial controls, including, .

without limitation, the employment of a fiscal agent approved by the Commissioner, as
determined by the Commissioner in his sole discretion and communicated in writing to the
Contractor after the date of execution of this Agreement, to ensure that the Contractor is fulfilling
the terms of this Agreement.

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall furnish the SSAC with semi-annual reports
or provide such information as may be requested relative to the performance and cost of the
Services. The Contractor shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred.
Tþe Contractor shall keep books, documents, paper, records and accounts in connection with the
Services open to inspection, copying, abstracting, transcription, and an independent audit by City
employees or agents or third parties, and shall make these records available to the City and any 

-

other interested governmental agency at reasonable times during the performance of its Services.



In addition, Contractor shall retain them in a safe place and make them available for anindependent audit, inspection, copying and abstracting for at least five years after the finalpayment made in connection with this Agreement.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMINGLB SERVICE TAX FLINDS WITHFLTNDS FROM OTHER SOURCES, and to the extent that the Contractor conducts any businessoperations separate and apart from the Services hereunder using, for example, pe.son rel,equipment, supplies or facilities also used in connection with this Agreemånt, t¡"r, the contractorshall maintain and make similarly available to the city detailed recoids suppárting thecontractor's allocation to this Agreement of the costs and expenses attributable to any suchshared usages.

The Contractor shall provide an annual audited financial statement (a..Third parry
Audit") to the Department and the ssAC within 120 calendar days after the end of the calendaryear, and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with génerally accefted accountingprinciples and practices, consistently applied throughout. Contiacto, *rrt rrrpry with therequirements in Exhibit I with respect to any Third Party Audit. If any Third party Audit showsthat contractor or any of its Subcontractors has o,rercha.ged the city in any period, the city willnotify contractor, and contractor must then promptly reñrburse the city for any amounts theCity has paid Contractor due to the overcharges. any failure to comply with the audit
requirements set forth in Exhibit 8 of the Agieement shall constitute an event of default under theAgreement' If such event of default is not cor¡ected to the City's satisfaction within the cureperiod identified by th! City, the City may incur costs to conduct any supplementary audit itdeems necessary, and contractor must thån promptly reimburse the 

-city 
io, any such costs. Noprovision in this Ag_reement granting the City u riglti of access to records and documents isintended to impair, limit or affect any right of accãss to such records and documents that the citywould have had in the absence of suðh provisions.

The city may in its sole discretion audit the records of contractor or its subcontractors,
or both, at any time during the term of this Agreement or within five years after the Agreement
ends, in connection with the goods, work, or iervices provided rnde. this Agreement. Eachcale¡dar year or partial calendar year is considered an "audited period.,, If, aî a result of such anaudit' it is determined that contractor or any of its subcontractors has overcharged the city in theaudited period, the city will notiÛ contractor. contractor must then promptlj reimburse theCity for any amounts the city has paid contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all ofthe cost of the audit, as follows:

A' If the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than 5%o of thetotal value, based on the Agreement prices, of thã goods, *o.k, oi servicesirovided in theaudited period, then the contractor must reimbursJthe óity ø, 50%o of thecost of the audit and
50Yo of the cost of each subsequent audit that the city conáucts;

B' If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representin g 5%o ormore of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided



in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the Cify for the full cost of the audit and of
each subsequent audit.

If the City is unable to make a determination regarding overcharges to City as a result of
Contractor's not having maintained records as required under this Agreunent, Contractor must
promptly reimburse the City for some or all of the cost of the audit, as determined in the sole
discretion ofthe City. Failure of Contractor to promptly reimburse the City in accordance with
this Section 3.07 is an event of default under Section 7.01 of this Agreement, and Contractor will
be liable for all of the City's costs of collection, including any court costs and attorneys, fees.

3.08 Subcontracts and Assignments

The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or otherwise transfer all or any part
of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or any part hereof, unless otherwise providåd for
herein or without the express written consent of the SSAC. The absence of such provision or
written consent shall void the attempted assignment, delegation or transfer and shall be of no
effect as to the Services or this Agreement.

All subcontracts, all approvals of Subcontractors and any assignment to which the SSAC
consents ffie, regardless of their form, deemed conditioned upon performance by the
Subcontractor or assignee in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

If the Contractor subcontracts for security services, the Subcontractor shall be a Security
Firm certified by the State of Illinois and the Security Firm's employees shall be licensed by thã
State of lllinois. The Contractor, upon entering into any subcontract with a Security Firm, shall
fumish the SSAC and the Department with a copy of the subcontract for their approval. The City
expressly reserves the right to approve all Security Firm subcontracts.

3.09 License, Permits and Safefy Considerations

A. Licenses and Permits

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it is responsible for and, in a timely manner
consistent with its obligations hereunder, shall secure and maintain at its expense such permits,
licenses, authorizations and approvals as are necessary for it to engage Construction under this
Agreement.

B. Safety Considerations

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall at all times exercise reasonable care,
shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws to prevent accidents or
injuries, and shall take all appropriate precautions to avoid damage to and låss of City property
and the property of third parties in corurection with the Construction. The Contractor shall erect



and properly maintain at all times all necessary safeguards, barriers, flags and lights for theprotection of its and its Subcontractors'employeei, Ciry1mploy"., *¿irr" iuUri". 
q - ^v¡ .*Y

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall report to the Department any damage
on, about, under or a'djacent to City prlpery or the property of third persons resulting from itsperformance under this Agreement. The Contractår is responsible for any damage to Cityproperfy and the property of third parties due, in whole or in part, to the Contractor,s
construction activities under this Agreement, and the contractor shall repair rr"r, ¿ääLïiä 

"reasonably acceptable standard.

3.10 Performance Bond

If the Contractor engages in Construction work where expenditures exceed $100,000, itshall' not later than the date the contractor begins such work or executes a subcontract for suchwork, provide or cause to be provided to the Department a perforïnance and payment bond in theamount allocated for the construction work (but not incluàing the amount äliocated for designand preparation of specifications), by a surety or sureties acceptable to the City. Theperformance bond shall be in the form and to the effect of Exhibit 6 hËreto, which is incorporated
by reference as if fully set forth here.

If any of the sureties on such bond at any time fail financially, or are deemed to beinsufficient security for the penalty of the bond, ihen the city may, on giving l0 days noticethereof in writing, require the Contractor to furnish a new and additional bond with suretiessatisfactory to the City, and, if so required, Contractor must promptly provide such bond.

ARTICLE 4 TERM OF SERVICES

This Agreement shall take effect as of January 1,2012 ("Effective Date,,) and shall

":ltilu: through December 31,2012, or until the Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance
wrln rß terrns.

ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION

5.01 Basis of payment

The maximum compensation that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement
between January 1,2072 and December 3r ,20r2is $3g2,06g.

5.02 Budget for Services

The Contractor in conjunction with the SSAC has prepared a Budget through December37, 2012, attached hereto as Exhibit I and incorporated by .eferenc. u, if fully set forth here,covering all services described in the Scope oflservices. Subject to the r.ri¡rti*-,h",;;
maximum amount that may be spent pursuant to this Agreement in calendar year 2012may not
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exceed $382,068, the SSAC reserves the right to transfer funds between line items or makeBudget revisions that do not affect the maximum compensation set forth in Section 5.01. TheSSAC shall revise the Budget if any part of the Contractor's Services is terminated.

5.03 Method of payment

Pursuant to a schedule to be determined by the Commissioner, after the performance ofServices pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, contractor may submit invoices to the city torequest reimbursement for such expenses. The contractor must provide, along with the invoices,
such additional documentation as the Commissioner requests to substantiate the services. Uponthe Commissioner's determination that the invoices are accurate, the City may process payment
of the invoices.

The Contractor shall establish a separate checking account (,,Account,,) in a bankauthorized to do business in the State of Illinóis that is insured by the Federal Deposit InsuranceCorporation' All Service Tax Funds 
_that the Comptroller tiansfers to the Contractor, orotherwise under the control of the contractor, snåil be deposited in the Account anddisbursements from the Account shall be pursuant to this Agreement. THE coNTRACToR ISRESPONSIBLE FoR RECONCILING rup accoUNT lt¿oNrHrv aNó ACcoLTNTING

FOR ALL SERVICE TAX FLINDS. THE CONTRACTOR MUST REQUIRE ITS AUDITORTO REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES THAT ARE SUPPORTED BY THESE FUNDS IN ASEPARATE AUDIT TO ACCOLINT FOR PzuOR YEARS' SERVICE TAX FLTNDS.

The Contractor shall provide to the SSAC the signature card and sample check from thebank which shows the signature(s) of the Contractor's authorized representative(s). The SSAC
reserves the right to audit the account and require the Contractor to refund any funds that werenot spent pursuant to the Budget or that were not approved by the SSAC. The name and addressof the bank is and the wire transfer and the Account
numbers are

All funds remaining in the Account at the expiration or early termination of this
Agreement, including any interest earned, belong toìhe City for the benefit of the Area and shall
be returned to the city to be used only for Speciãl Services.

5.04 Criteria for payment

The SSAC shall determine the reasonableness, allocability and allowability of any rates,
costs and expenses charged or incurred by the Contractor.

5.05 Funding

Payments under^this Agreement shall be made from Service Tax Funds and are subject tothe availability of such funds.
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5.06 Non-Appropriation

In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any Cityfiscal period for payments to be made under this Agreement, then the city will notifi thecontractor of such occulÏence and this Agreement shall terrninate on theLarlier of the last day ofthe fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriatedfor payment under this Agreement are exháusted. No payments shall be made or due to thecontractor under this Agreement beyond those amouni, áppropriated and budgeted by the city tofund payments hereunder.

ARTICLE 6 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

6.01 Warranties and Representations

In connection with the execution of this Agreement, the contractor warrants andrepresents:

A' That it is financially solvent; that it and each of its employees, agents, andSubcontractors are competent to perform the services required; that ii iri"guiry authorized toexecute and perform or cause to be performed this AgreeLent under the terms and conditionsstated herein.

B' That it shall not knowingly use the services of any ineligible subcontractor for anypulpose in the performance of the Services.

C' That it and its Subcontractors are not in default at the time of the execution of thisAgreement, or deemed by the Department to have, within five years immediately preceding thedate of this Agreement, been found to be in defauít on any coniract awarded by the city.

D' That it and, to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors are not in violation ofthe provisions of ç 2-92-320 of the Municipal co¿" ãr'cr,icago, 720ILCS 5/33t.-l er seq. of thecriminal code of 1961, and 65 ILCS 5/ll:42.1-l of the nr'oir'l¿unñ; õ;ã".

E' That it, all Subcontractor-s and their respective officers, directors, agents, partners,and employees shall cooperate with the Inspector Genåral in any i""úig"ri;;år hearingundertaken pursuant to chapter 2-56 of the Municipal code of chicago; that it understands andwill abide by all provisions of chapter 2-56 of theMunicipal co¿e oicii"ago and allsubcontracts shall inform subcontractors ofsuch provision and require understanding andcompliance therewith.

F' That, except only for those representations, statements or promises expresslycontained in this Agreement and any exhibits attached hereto, no representation, statement orpromise, oral or written, or of any kind whatsoever, by the city, its àffiriulr, ugËnt, o.employees, has induced the contractor to enter into this Agreement.
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G' That the Contractor understands and agrees that any certification, afñdavit or
acknowledgmerrt made under oath in connection with this Agreement is made under penalty of
perjury and, if false, is also cause for termination for default.

H' That neither Contractor nor an Affiliate of Contractor (as defined below) appea.rs
on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, the
Entity List or the Debarred List as maintained by the office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.s. Department of
Commerce (or their successors), or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City
may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment. ..Affiliate of
Contractor"means a person or entity that directly (or inãirectly through on. ãr *o.e
intermediaries) controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Contractor. A person
or entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any
manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other persón or entity (either actin!
individually or acting jointly or in concert with otlers) whether directly or indirectly and
whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

I' Contractor understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-26 of the
Municipal Code of the City of Chicago.

J' Contractor will abide by any policies promulgated by the Department or other City
departments.

K' Contractor understands and will abide by, and will cause Subcontractors to abide
by, the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of óhicago pertaining to cooperation with
the office of the Legislative Inspector General. Contractor undeistands and wilt abide by the
terms of Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. Failure by the Contractor or any
controlling person (as defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago) thereof to
maintain eligibility to do business with the City of Chicago as required by Section l-23-030 of
the Municipal Code of Chicago shall be a default for which no cure is available and grounds for
termination of this Agreement.

6.02 Economic Discrosure statement and Affidavit

The Contractor has provided the City with an Economic Disclosure Statement (EDS) andAffidavit, "Familial Relationships with Elected City officials and Department Heads,,, which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated by reference as if fully sèt forth herein. Contractor
shall apprise the Department promptly of any changes in the information provided in the EDS by
completing and submitting a revised EDS.

In addition, the Contractor shall provide the City with copies of its latest articles of
incorporation, by-laws and resolutions, or partnership or joint ventuie agreement, as applicable,
and evidence of its authority to do business in the State of Illinois, incluãing without limitation,
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registrations of assumed names or limited partnerships and certifications of good standing with
the Office of the Secretary of State of Illinois.

6.03 Conflict of Interest

Pursuant to Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, and 65 ILCS 5/3.1-55-10,
no member of the goveming body of the City or other unit of govemment, no other officer,
employee, SSAC member, or agent of the City or other unit of gãvernment who exe.cises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the Services to which this Agreement or any
related subcontract pertain, and no relative of any SSAC member shall have any personal
economic or financial interest, directly or indirectly, in this Agreement or any such subcontract
except to the extent that such benefits are provided equally to all residents and./or business
owners in the Area. Furthermore, no SSAò member,'relative of any SSAC member, City
official, agent or employee shall be a Subcontractor, employee or shareúolder of the Contractor
or receive anything of value from the Contractor.

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States or the Illinois General
Assembly and no alderman of the City or City employee shall be admitted to any share or part of
this Agreement or to any financial benefit to arise from it. The Contractor acknowledges túat any
agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the provisions=of Chapter
2-156 shall be voidable by the Ciry.

' The Contractor covenants that it, its officers, directors and employees, and the officers,
directors and employees of each of its members if a joint venture, and Subcontractors pr.r"rrily
have no financial interest and shall acquire no interest, direct or indirect, in the Services
undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement that would conflict in urry -u*., o,
degree with the performance of the Services. The Contractor further covenan,s ,ft"il" ,frå
performance of this Agreement no person having any such interest shall be employed. The
Contractor agrees that if the Commissioner in his reasonable judgment determines tùat any of the
Contractor's services for others conflict with the Services the Contractor is to provide for ihe City
under this Agreement, the Contractor shall terminate such other services immediately upo.,
request of the City.

6.04 Non-liability of public Officials

No official, employee or agent of the City shall be charged personally by the Contractor,
or by any assignee or Subcontractor of the Contractor, with any liabiiity o. .*p"nr", of defense or
be held personally liable to them under any term or provision hereof, because of the City,s
execution or attempted execution hereof, or because ofany breach hereof.

6.05 Independent Contractor

(a) The Contractor shall perform under this Agreement as an independent contractor
to the city and not as a representative, employee, agent o. purtn.. of the city.
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(b) The city is subject to the May 3 1,2007 order entitled ..Agreed 
settlement orderand Accord" (the "shakman Accord") an¿ itre August 16,2007..city oichi"ugo Hiring plan,,(the "city Hiring Plan") entered in shakman v. Derãocratic organization oi cook county, caseNo 69 c 2145 (united State District court for the Norrhern õirt¡.t of lliinois). Among otherthings' the shakman Accord and the city Hiring plarrprohibit the city fråm niring persons asgovernmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of politicãr rruron, or factors.

(c) contractor is aware that city policy prohibits city employees from directing anyindividual to applv for a position with coniractor,'.i,rto 
", "" á;l;î;ãl u, u subconrractor,and from directing contractor to hire an indiviâuui u, an employee or as a subcontractor.Accordingly, contractor must follow its or,rm hiring Lã 
"ontructìng 

procedures, without beinginfluenced by city employees. Any and all perãonnel provided by contractor under thisAgreement are employees or subcontiactors of cónhactor, not employeås of the city of chicago.This Agreement is not intended to and does not constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwiserecognize an employer-employee relationship of any kind between the city and any personnelprovided by Contractor.

(d) contractor will not condition, base, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term oraspect of the employment of any persorurel provideã u.rde, this Ágreement, or offer employmentto any individual to provide services rlaèr this Agreement, bãsed upo' o, because of anypolitical reason or factor, including, without limitafron, any individual,s political affiliation,membership in a political organization or party, poriticaÏ support or activity, political financialcontributions, promises of such politi"ut ."ppott, u",iuiv ãi finan"ial coíiributions, or suchindividual's political sponsorship õ. ,."o--endation. For purposes of this Agreement, a politicalotganization or party is an identifiable group or entity that has as its primary purpor" the supportof or opposition to candidates for elected public office. Individual political activities are theactivities of individual persons in support of or in opposition to political organizations or partiesor candidates for elected public offrce-

(e) In the event of any communication to contractor by a city employee or cityofficial in violation of section (cj above, o, advo"ating u violatiãn of section (d) above,contractor will, as soon as is reasonably piacticabr", t"pått such communication to the Hiringoversight section of the city's office oi th" tnspecto. General, and also to the head of therelevant city Department utilizing services provideá under this Agreement.

6.06 Business Rerationships with Erected officiars

Pursuant to section 2-156-030(b) of the Municipal code of the city of chicago, it isillegal for any elected official of the city, or any person acting at the direction of such offìcial, tocontact' either orally or.in writin g, My àtrt.r city official o. employee with respect to any matterinvolving any person with whornthe Llected official has a business relationship, or to participatein any discussion in any city council committee hearing or in any ciry coul"il meeting or tovote on any matter involving the person with whom an elected ãffi.iul has a business
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relationship. Violation of Section 2-156-030(b) by any elected official with respect to this
Agreement is grounds for termination of this Agreement. The term business relationship is
defined as set forth in section 2-156-0g0 of the Municipal code of chicago.

Section 2-156-080 defines a " business relationship" as any contractual orotherprivate
business dealing of an official, or his or her spouse, or of any entity in which an official or his orher spouse has a financial interest, with a person or entity which entitles * om.i¿ to
compensation or payment in the amount of $2,500 or more in a calendar year; provided,
however, a financial interest shall not include: (i) any ownership through purchase at furmarket
value or inheritance of less than one percent of the share ola .o.pãruìion, or any corporate
subsidiary, parent or affiliate thereof, regardless of the value of or dividends on such shares, if
such shares are registered on a securities exchange pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; (ii) the authorized compensation paid to an official or employee foriis office
or employment; (iii) any economic benefit provided equally to all residents of the City; (iv) a
time or demand deposit in a financial institution; or 1v) an endowment or insurance policy or
annuity contract purchased from an insurance company. A "contractual or other private business
dealing" shall not include any employment relationship of an official's ,po.r." with an entity
when such spouse has no discretion conceming or inpui relating to the relaiionship between that
entify and the City.

6.07 Chicago,,Living Wage" Ordinance

(a) Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living
wage for certain categories of workers employed in the p".ior-u.r"e of City 

-contracts,

specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborerr, ho*" *á
health care workers, cashiers, elevator operators, custodial workers and clerical workers
('lCovered Employees")' Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and r"guruiio",
promulgated under it:

(i) If Contractor has 25 or more full_time employees, and

' (ii) If at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Contraptor and/or
any Subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services
(collectively "Performing Parties") uses 25 or more full-time security guards, or
any number of other full_time Covered Employees, then

(iii) Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that
all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than
the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision
(the "Base Wage") for all Services performed under this Agreement.

(b) Contractor's obligation to pay, and to assure payment of,'the Base Wage will
begin at any time during the term of this Agreement when the conditions set forth in iã¡1i; ana
(a)(ii) above are met, and will continue until the end of the term of this Agreement.
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(c) as of July 7,2011, the Base wage is $11.18, and each July I thereafter, the Base
'wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of four aspublished annually by the Ú's- o"purtment of Healtl and Human services, to constitute thefollowing: the poverly guidelines for a family of four divided by 2000hours or the current base\¡/age' whichever is higher. At all times auring th" 1""" of this Agreement, contractor and allother Performing Parties must pay the Base Y4" qu"áã¡*t"d in u.ãor¿u*e with rhe above). Ifthe payment of prevaìling *ug.t is required ro. de*iås done under this Agreement, and theprevailing wages for covered Èmployees are higher than the Base wage, then contractor and allother Performing parties must pay the prevailing-wage rates.

(d) contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring itsSubcontractors to pay.the Base wage to covered Emplãyees. contractor agrees to provide thecity with documentation acceptablJto the chief Pro*r.-.nt officer demJnstrating that allcovered Employees, whether èmployed by contractor or by a Subcontractor, have been paid theBase wage' upon the city's requåst ior such documentatior. 
- 
The city may independently auditcontractor and/or Subcontractors to verifu 

"o-pti*.. *ìir,,rri, sectiãn. É"ü;r" ro comply withthe requirements of this section will be an event of default 
lndgr this Agreement, and further,failure to comply may result in ineligibility for uny u**J of a city.onrîu.io, subcontract for upto 3 years.

(e) Not-for-Profit corporations: If contractor is a corporation having federaltax-exempt status under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal R"rr"nu. code and is recognized underIllinois not-for-profit law, rhen rhe pàíìrion, 
"f 

s;";ì;;rl; tr,rougt (d) above do nor apply.

6.03 Deemed Inclusion

Provisions required by law' ordinances, rules, regulations or executive orders to beinserted in this Agreement are deemed inserted l; di;ä;eement whether or not rhey appear inthis Agreement or, upon application by.lirh:r.furrr, flú; Ä;r".ment wilr be arn_ended to make theinsertion; however, in no lrr..rt wili the faiìure L irrr"n the provisions before or after thisAgreement is signed prevent its enforcernent.

6.09 Environmental Warranties and Representations

In accordance with Section I l-4-1600(e) of the Municipal code of chicago, contractorwarrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors have notviolated and are not in violation of the following sections-of the code (collectively, the wasteSections):

7_-?8-390 Dumping on public way;
7---21!40 Dumping on real estate without permit;
!!-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited;
11-4-1420 Ballasr tank, bilge tank or other discharge;
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1 1 -4-l 450 Gas manufacturing residue;
1l-4-1500 Treatment and disposar of solid or liquid waste;
1l-4-1530 compliance with rures and regulations required;
1 I -4-1 550 Operational requirements; and
I I -4- I 560 Screening requirements.

During the period while this Agreement is executory, contractor's or any subcontractor,sviolation of the waste sections, whelh¡r or not relating to the performance of this Agreement,constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Agreement, for which the opportunity tocure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole designation of the Commissioner. such breachand default entitles the City to all remedies under the Ágreem enr, atlaw or in equity.

This section does not limit contractor's and its subcontractors' duty to comply with allapplicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinan.". und executive orders, ineffect now or later, and whether or not they ãppear in this Agreement.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the city as grounds forthe termination of this Agreement, and may further affect contractor,s eligibility for futurecontract awards.

6.r0 EDS / certification Regarding suspension and Debarment

Contractor certifies, as further evidenced in the EDS attached as Exhibit 2, by itsacceptance of this Agreement that neither it nor its principatr ir pr"r.rrirv ã"uuo.¿, suspended,proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluìed frofu participation in thistransaction by any federal department or agency. contractor further ugr"., by executing thisAgreement that it will include this clause without modification in all Io*., tier transactions,solicitations, proposals, contracts and subcontracts. If contractor or any lower tier participant isunable to certifu to this statement, it must attach an explanation to the Aireement.

6.ll Ethics

(a) In addition to other warranties and representations, Contractor warrants that nopayment, gratuity or offer of employment will be maáe in connection with this Agreement by oron behalf of any subcontractors to contractor or higher tier subcontractors or anyone associatedwith them, as an inducement for the award of a subcóntract or order.

(b) Contractor further acknowledges that any Agreement entered into, negotiated orperformed in violation of any of the provisions of chaper i-tsøis voidable as to the city.
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6.12 MacBrideOrdinance

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles ordinance seeks topromote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices foi religious minorities inNorthern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Ñorthern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, ifContractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, the Contractor must make allreasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland inaccordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois public Act
85-1390 (1988I11. Laws 3220).

The provisions of this Section 6.12 do not apply to contracts for which the City receivesfunds administered by the united States Departmènt of Transportation, except to the extent
Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not withhold funds from states andlocalities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to complywith the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, oi io the extent that such funds are nototherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.

ARTICLE 7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, RTGHT
TO OFFSET, SUSPENSION

7.01 Events of Default Defined

The following constitute events of default:

A' Any material misrepresentation, whether negligent or willful and whether in theinducement or in the performance, made by contractor to the city.

B' Contractor's material failure to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement
including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) failure to commence or ensure timely completion of the Services due to a
reason or circumstance within contractor's reasonable control;

(2) failure to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to the city;

(3) failure to promptly re-perform within a reasonable time Services that were
rejected as erroneous or unsatisfactory;

(4) discontinuance of the Services for reasons within the Contractor,s reasonable
control;
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(5).failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including but notlimited to the provisions conceming insurance and nondiscrimination; and

(6) any other acts specifically and expressly stated in this Agreement asconstituting an event of default.

c' The contractor's default under any other agreement it may presently have or mayenter into with the city during the life of this Âgr".-.rrt. The contrácior acknowledges andagrees that in the event of a default under this Alreement the city may also declare a defaultunder any such other agreements. v¡lJ ¡r¡sr qrù

7.02 Remedies

The occurrence of any event of default which the contractor fails to cure within 14calendar days after receipt of notice specifuing such default or which, if such event of defaultcannot reasonably be cured within 14 calenda. duy, after notice, the contractor fails, in the soleopinion of the commissioner, to commence and continue diligent efforts to cure, permits the cityto declare the contractor in default. whether to declare the contractor in default is within thesole discretion of the commissioner. written notification of the default, and any intention of thecity to terminate the Agreement, shall be provided to contractor and such decision is final andeffective upon contractor's receipt of such notice. Úpon r"""ipt of such notice, the contractormust discontinue any services, unless otherwise direcied in the notice, and deliver all materialsaccumulated in the performance of this Agreement, whether completed or in the process ofcompletion' to the city' At such time thé city may invoke any tegat or equitable remedyavailable to it including, but not limited to, the foriowing: 
wrr ¡vÞq¡ v¡

A' The right to take over and complete the Services or any part thereof as agent forand at the cost of the contractor, eitherdirectly or througr, others. Thå contractor shall have, insuch event, the right to offset from such cost the u.norrrü-it would have cost the city under theterms and conditions herein had the contractor completed the Services.

B' The right to terminate this Agreement as to any or all of the Services yet to beperformed, effective at a time specified by thJCity

C.
remedy.

The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable

The right to money damages.

The right to withhold all or any part of contractor,s compensation hereunder.

The'right to deem Contractor non-responsible in future contracts to be awarded bythe City.

D.

E.

F.
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If the City considers it to be in its best interest, it may elect not to declare default or toterminate this Agreement. The parties acknowledge thai this provision is solely for the benefit of' the city and that if the city permits the contractor to continue to provide the Services despite
one or more events of default, the Contractor is in no way relievea ãr any of its responsibilities,
duties-or obligations under this Agreement nor does the City waive or relinquish arry of its rights.No delay or omission to exercise any right accruing upon any event of default impairs any suchright nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any ã*nt of dlfault or acquiescence therein, andevery such right may be exercised from time to time and as often as -ay bå deemed.*p"ái*i. 

--

7.03 Righr ro Offser

The City reserves its rights under ç 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and thecommissioner shalr consurt with the ssAC before exercising such rights.

7.04 Suspension

The City may ar any time request that the Contractor suspend its Services, or any part
thereof, by giving 15 days prior written notice to the contractor or upon no notice in the event ofemergency. No costs incurred after the effective date of such suspension shall be allowed. TheContractor shall promptly resume its performance upon written nãtice by the Department. The
Budget may be revised pursuant to Section 5.02 to account for any additional costs or expenses
actually incurred by the Contractor as a result of recommencing túe Services.

7.05 No Damages for Delay

The Contractor agrees that it, its members, if a partnership or joint venture and its
Subcontractors shall make no claims against the city får damages, charges, additional costs orhourly fees for costs incurred by reason of delays o, hindr*.es by the City in the performance ofits obligations under this Agreement.

7.06 Early Termination

In addition to termination for default, the City may, atany time, elect to terminate this
Agreement or any portion of the Services to be performeiunder it at the sole discretion of the
Commissioner by a written notice to the Contractor. If the City elects to t"r-inat" t¡e
Agreement in full' all Services shall cease and all materials accumulated in performing this
Agreement, whether completed or in the process of completion, shall be delivered to the
Department within 10 days after receipt of the notice or fy the date stated in the notice.

During the fìnal ten days or other time period stated in the notice, the Contractor shall
restrict its activities, and those of its Subcontractors, to winding down any reports, analyses, or
other activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination areallowed' Payment for any Services actually and satisfactorily performed before the effective dateof the termination shall be on the same basis as set forth in Article 5 hereof, but if any
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compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten days, then the
compensation shall be prorated accordingly.

If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the City's election to terminate this
Agreement for default has been wrongful, then such termination shall be deemed to be an early
termination.

ARTICLE 8 GENERAL CONDITIONS

8.01 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, and the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated hereby, shall
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and no other warranties, inducements,
considerations, promises' or interpretations shall be implied or impressed upon this Agreement
that are not expressly addressed herein. ¡ -'r --'

8.02 Counterparts

This Agreement is comprised of several identical counterparts, each to be fully executed
by the parties and each to be deemed an original having identical legal effect.

8.03 Amendments

No changes, amendments, modifications or discharge of this Agreement, or any part
thereof, shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the ailthorized afent of the contractor andthe Commissioner, or their successors and assigns. itr. City shall incur no liability for revised
services without a written amendment to this Agreement pursuant to this Section.

8.04 Compliânce with AII Laws

The Contractor shall at all times 
9b¡erye 

and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances,
rules, regulations and executive orders of the federal, statå an¿ local góvernment, now existing orhereinafter in effect, which may in any manner affect the performancã of this Àgr..*"nr.

8.05 compliance with ADA and other Accessibility Laws

If this Agreement involves services to the public, the Contractor warrants that all Servicesprovided hereunder shall comply with all accessibility standards for persons with disabilities orenvironmentally limited persons including, but not limited to the folíowing: Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990,42 U.S.C. $ l2l0l et seq. and the Rehabilitation-Act of 1973,29 U.S.C.
$$ 793-94' In the event that the above cited standãrds are inconsistent, the Contractor shall
comply with the standard providing greater accessibility
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If this Agreement involves design for construction and/or Construction, the Contractor
warrants that all design documents produced and/or used under this Agreemení shall comply withall federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding accessibility standards for persons withdisabilities or environmentally limited persons ináuding-, but not limited to, the following:
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,42u.s.c. g rãior et seq. and the Americans withDisabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildinls and Facilities; the Architectural BarriersAct, P'L' 90-480 and the Uniform Federal Accessibiilty Standards; and the Environmental
Barriers Act' 410 LLCS 25/1et seq,, and the regulations promulgated thereto at lll. Admin. codetit'71, ch. 1, $ 400-110. In the eventthat the ubou" citeá standards are inconsistent, the
contractor shall comply with the standard providing greater accessibility. If the contractor failsto comply with the foregoing standards, it shall p.rro* again atno 

"*plnr. 
all services requiredto be reperformed as a direct or indirect result oisuch failure.

8.06 Assigns

All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to thebenefit ofthe parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, transferees andassigns.

8.07 Cooperation

The Contractor agrees at all times to cooperate fully with the City and to act in the City,sbest interests' Upon the termination or expiration of this Ágreement, the contractor shall makeevery effort to assure an orderly transition to another provider ofthe Services, ifany, orderlydemobilization of its operations in connection with the services, uninterrupted provision ofservices during any transition period and shall otherwise comply with reasonable requests of theDepartment in connection with this Agreement's termination or expiration.

8.08 Severability

If any provision of this Agreement is held or deemed to be or shall in fact be inoperative
or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because itconflicts with any other provision hereof or of any constiiution, statute, ordinance, rule of law orpublic policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering
such provision inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstances, or of rendering
any other provision herein invalid, inoperative, orunenforceable to any extent. The invalidity ofany one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections herein shall not affect the remainingportions of this Agreement or any part thereof.

8.09 Interpretation

All headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and do not define orlimit the provisions thereof. V/ords of geñder are deemed to include correlative words of the
other gender' words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa,
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unless the context otherwise indicates- All references to exhibits or documents are deemed toinclude all supplements and/or amendments to such exhibits or documents if entered into inaccordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thereof. AII references to persons orentities are deemed to include any persons or entities succeeding to the rights, duties, andobligations of such persons or entities in accordance with the terms and conditions herein.

8.10 Miscellaneous provisions

whenever under this Agreement the city by a proper authority waives the contractor,sperformance in any respect or waives a requiremerrt oicon¿ition to the contractor,s performance,the waiver, whether express or implied, applies only to that particular instance and is not awaiver forever or for subsequent instances of the pérformance, requirement or condition. Nowaiver shall be construed as a modification of the Ag;ernent regardless of the number of timesthe City may have waived the performance, requirement or condition.

8.11 Disputes

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, contractor must and the city may bringany dispute arising under this Agreement which is noÍ rásolved by the þarties to the ChiefProcurement officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy ofthe "Regulations of the Department of Procurement services for Resolutior, àf oisputes betweencontractors and the city oicrricago" is¿vailable in city H.all,l21N. LaSalle street, Room 301,Bid and Bond Room, Chicago, Illinois 60602.) The Ch-ief procurement officer will issue awritten decision and send it to the contractor and the ssAC by mail. The decision of the chiefProcurement officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge thedecision of the chief Procurement offiòer is judicial review by means of a common law writ ofcertiorari.

8.12 ContractorAffidavit

The contractor must provide to the city, no later than thiúy days after the end of eachyeaÍ, a fully executed and notanzed.Affidavjt L".ti¡ri"g th" 
"*p.rrditúes and Services providedfor the prior year. The form of this affidavit is attaciedäs Exhibit 7 and incorporared byreference.

8.13 Prohibition on Certain Contributions

Contractor agrees that contractor, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has anownership or beneficial interest in Contractor of more thanT.Spercent (,'Owners,,), spouses anddomestic partners of such owners, contractor's subcontractors, any person or entity who directlyor indirectly has an ownership or beneficial interest i' unf ,uurontiactor of more than 7 .5percent("sub-owners") and spouses and domestic partners ors.rct sub-owners (contractor and all theother preceding classes of persons and entities are togeth"r, th. (.îdentifiìd parties,,)), shall notmake a contribution of any amount to the Mayor of tãe city of chicago (.,Mayor,,) or to his
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political fundraising committee (i) after execution of this Agreement by contractoa (ii) whilethis Agreement or any other coniract is executory, (iii) ãuring the term of this Agreement or anyother contract between contractor and the city, ár ii"l ãuring any period while an extension ofthis Agreement or any other contract is being ,áugrrt í negotiatea.

contractor represents and wa:rants that since the date of public advertisement of thespecification' request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or anycombination of those requests) or, if not competitivåly pro"ur"d, fróm the date the cityapproached contractor or the date contractor approacnã¿ tne city, as uppti.ubt", regarding theformulation of this Agreement, no Identified Pariies have made acontribution of any amount tothe Mayor or to his political fundraising committee 
v s vvr¡uruulr(rrr

contractor agrees that it shall not: 
_(a) 

coerce, compel or intimidate its employees tomake a contribution of any amount to the vtáyor * rå ,t. it¿ayor,s political fundraisingcommittee; (b) reimburse its employees for a contribution of any amount *uá. to the Mayor or tothe Mayor's political fundraising committee; or (c) uurr¿i. or solicit others to bundlecontributions to the Mayor or to his politicar fu"àí"iri"g *mmittee.

contractor agrees that the Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoeverdesigned to intentionally violate this provision or MayoruiEx"*tiu. ordår No. I r-+ or to entice,

Í]*" 
or solicit others to intentionally violate trrir proíirion o, Mayoral Executive order No. I l-

contractor agrees that a violation of, non-compliance with, misrepresentation withrespect to' or breach of any covenant or warranty under this provision o. uiolution of MayoralExecutive order No' l1-4 constitutes a breach and defauilund.. this Agreement, and under anyother contract for which no opportunity to-cure will be granted. such breach and default entitlesthe city to all remedies (including withåut limitation terÃination for default) under thisAgreement, under other contract, at law and in equity. This provision amends any othercontract and supersedes any inconsistent provision contained therein.

If contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive order No. I l-4 prior to award

;åt 
Agreement resulting from this sfecifrcation, tt. commissioner may reject contracror,s

For purposes of this provision:

"Bundle" means to collect contributions from more than one source which are thendelivered by one person to the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

"other contract" means any other agreement with the city of chicago to whichcontractor is a party that is (i) formed under the authority of chapter 2-92 of theMunicipal code of chicago; (ii) entered into for the purchas. oi lru* of real or personal
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properfy; or (iii) for materials, supplies, equipment or services which are approved or
authorized by the city council.

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in Chapter 2-156 of the
Municipal Code of Chicago, as amended.

lndividuals are "Domestic Partners" if they satisfu the following criteria:

(A) they are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's
common welfare; and

(B) neither party is married, as marriage is defined under Illinois law; and
(C) the partners are not related by blood closer than would bar marriage in the

State of Illinois; and
(D) each partner is at least I 8 years of age, and the partners are the sarne sex,

and the partners reside at the same residence; and
(E) two of the following four conditions exist for the partners:

L The partners have been residing together for at least 12 months.
2. The partners have common or joint ownership of a residence.
3. The partners have at least two of the following arrangements:

a. joint ownership of a motor vehicle;
b. a joint credit account;
c. ajoint checking account;
d. a lease for a residence identifuing both domestic partners as

tenants. :

4. Each partner identifies the other partner as a primary beneficiary in
a will.

"Political fundraising committee" means a "political fundraising committee" as defined in
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal code of Chicago, as amended."

8.14 Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals with Disabilities

The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or operated
by individuals with disabilities, as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal Code of the
city of chicago, where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.

8.15 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agreement is govemed as to performance and interpretation in accordance with the
laws of the State of lllinois.
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ARTICLE 9 NOTICES

Notices provided for herein shall be in
United States mail, first class, certified, retum
addressed as follows:

writing and may be delivered personally or by
receipt requested, with postage prepaidand

If to the City: Special Service Area #8 Commission
3138 N. Broadway
Chicago, Illinois 60657

Department of Housing and Economic Development
City Hall, Room 1000
l2l North LaSalle Street
Chicago, Illinois 60602
Attention: Commissioner

Department of Law
Room 600, City Hall
12l North LaSalle Street
Chicago,Illinois 60602
Attention: Corporation Counsel

Lakeview East Chamber of Commerce
3138 N. Broadway
Chicago, Illinois 60657
Attention: Ms. Maureen Theresa Martino

With Copies to:

If to Contractor:

ARTICLE 11 MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT

The city has enteredinto the Multi-project Labor Agreement ("pLA") with various

ïj::*:1is lTj.::j',."s 
described i: 

Fe_p_LA, 
u.opy "i;l;;;ì**;o:;oices, iJanached herero as Exhibit 9. A copy of the pla, with app""¿i""r,.;;;lr; #äi"äirìn.

Changes in the above-referenced addresses must be in writing and delivered inaccordance with the provisions of this section. Notices delivered bf mail ,rrulr uL ¿.r*.¿received 3 days after mailing-in accordance with this section. Notices delivered personally shallbe deemed effective upon.eóèipt.

ARTICLE 10 CITY ACTION

In the event that there is no duly constituted ssAC during the term of this Agreement, thecity will retain all of the rights and obiigations afforded to the ssAC hereunder.

City's website at http://www.ci
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the requirements of the PLA and its applicability to any services under this Agreement, and shallcomply in all respects with any appricable provision, orth" pra.
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rN WTTNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have executed thisAgreement on the date first set forth above, at chicago, Iilinois.

CITY OF CHICAGO

By:
Commissioner, Department of
Housing and Economic Development

CONTRACTOR
By:
Its:
Attested By:
Its:

State of
County of

This instrument was acknowredged before me on (date) by(name/s of person/s) as 

- 

(type of autrt"rity, ..g., officer, trustee, etc.) of(name ofparty on ¡rtrulf of *t o* irrrt.ument was executed).

lSigttutur" ofñ;uryÞubtic)
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EXHIBIT 1

Scope of Services & Budget
(See Attached)
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SCHEDULE A: SSA BUDGET & SERVICES SUMMARY
C¡ty of Chicago, Department of Housing and Economic Developmenl

SSA#SLakeviewEast
Lakeview East Chamber of Commerce

Budget Period: January 1 . ZO12to Decembe r Aj 2o12January 1,2012to December 31,2012

1.00 Advertising & Promotion

5.00 Façade lmprovements

.00 Other Technical Assistance

193,4'17

EÈEÊl-r I ilvl I .¡ l-'*l I I rt¡ I ù¡ 7rl ¡l'I
1.00 Advertising & Promotion

2.00 Public Wáy Maintenance

3.00 Public Way Aesthetics

4.00 Tenant Retention/Attraction

5.00 Façade lmprovements

8.00 District Planning

9-00 Other Technical Assistance



EXHIBIT 2

Economic Disclosure Statement and Affrdavit
(See Anached)



CITY OF CHICAGO
EcoNoMrc DrsclosuRE STATEMENT and AFFTDAVTT

Related to ContracUAmendmenUsolicitation
EDS # 28907

SECTION I .. GENERAL INFORMATION

A' Legal name of the Discrosing party submitting the EDs:
Lake View East Chamber of Commerce

Enter d/b/a if applicable:

The Disclosing party submitting this EDS is:

the Applicant

B. Business address of the Disclosing party:

3138 N. Broadway
Chicago, IL 60657
United States

C. Telephone:

773-348-8608

l-ax:

773 -348 -7 409

Email:

maureen@lakevieweas t . com

D. Name of contact person:

Ms. Maureen Theresa Martino
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E. Federal Employer ldentification No. (if you have one):

F' Brief descriptíon of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below as
the "Matter") to which this EDS pertains:

Authorizing the expenditure of funds from previous tax years
from ssA #8, deliver special services in the previous ssA #g
and authoríze a serwice provider agreement..

Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS?

DEPT OF HOUSING AND ECONOMTC DEVELOPMENT

Specification Number

9086 6

Contract (PO) Number

Revision Number

Release Number

User Department Project Number

SECTION II -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARry

1. lndicate the nature of the Disclosing party:

Not - for-prof it corporation

ls the Disclosing Party also a S01(c)(3) organization?

No

- ls the Disclosing Party incorporated or organized in the State of lllinois?

Yes

B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY:
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1.a.1 Does the Disclosíng party have any directors?

Yes

l'"'3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors,
if aly: of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select theentity's offìcers.

Off.ícer/Director: Mr. Todd. Mack
Title 2 Board of Direct.or
Role: Director
Off.icer/Director: Mr. Wil_Iiam Shepard
Title: president
RoIe: Both

officer/Direcror: Ms. uaria .;á;rr":.;'; 
' '

Tit1e¡ Board of Director
Role: Director
Of.fícer/Director: Mr. John Anastopoulos
Title: Board of Director
Role: Director
Officer/Director: Mr- Nancj-e King Mertz
Tit1e: Board of Director
RoIe: Director
orrícer/oirector;' il-';;;;;-;;;;;;''--:'-'--'-'-
TítIe: Board of Director
RoIe: Director
Oftícer/Director: Mr. David Winner
Tit1e: Treasurer
RoIe: Both

Officer/Director: Ms. Lori Lind.burg
Title: Board of Directors
Role: Director
Officer,/Director: Ms.,-fennifer Avil_a
Title: Secretary
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RoIe: Both
^ : -:-------. 

'. -:-------
urtl_cer,/Director: Ms. Gerogeann Bruscenelli
Title: Board of DirecLors
RoIe: Di-rector
Of.f.ícer/Director: Ms. Anya Keogh
Title:
Role:

Title:
RoIe:

__-___i--_-_--

Off.icer/Director: Mr. David CoIlins

Board of Directors
Director

Board of Director
Di-rector

Offieer/Director: Ms. Maureen Theresa Martino
Title:
RoIe:

Executiwe Director
Both

Otf.ícer/DÍrector: Ms. Rachel Vorm
Títle:
Role:

Title:
Role:

-.--:---.--.---
Of f icer/Director: Ms. Krj_stan Ralrmond

Board of Directors
Direct.or

Board of Directors
Director

Of.fícer/Director: Ms. Kinley preston
TitLe:
Role:

Board of Directors
Director

1'a'5 Are there any members of the non-for-prof¡t Disclosing party which are legalentities? -".s ' -'

No

SECTION III .- BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing party had a "business rerationshíp,,,as defined in ehaplerzisQof the Municipal Cpde, wíth any city elected officiat ¡Å ir* räî;;;; ileror" the datethis EDS is signed?

No
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SECTION IV.- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER
RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must dísclose the name and business address of each
subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or
entity whom the Disclosing Pãrty has retained or expects-to-r.tjn-i" ãónnection
with the Matter, as well as the nature of the'relationship, and the total amount of thefees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing party is not i"qriiãoìo disclose
employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing pafi's regular payroll.

"Lobbyist" means any person or entity who undertakes to influence any legislative oradministrative action on behalf of any plrson or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit
entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" ál.o ,""n" 

"Ài 
person or

entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includesundertaking toinfluence any legistative or administratíve aótíon.

I th: Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is requíred under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosur" is råquir"o
or make the disclosure.

1' Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter?

No

3' Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter?

Yes

4- List below the names of all persons who are retained parties.

Na-ure:

Anticipated/
Retained:
Business Address:

ReJ.ationship:
Fees
($S or %):
Estimat.ed,/Paid:

Ms. Kimberly T. Boike
Retained

30 South Wacker Drive
Suite 2600
Chicago, IL 60606 United States
Att.orney
$4, 000

Estimated
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SECTION V .- CERTIFICATIONS

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under,substantialownersofbusinessentitiesthat
contract wíth the city must remain in compliance with their child rrpú; obligationsthroughout the contract's term 

Y' rrrv vuvvvr

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10o/o or more of the Disclosing party
been declared in. arrearage of any child support obligations by any lllinois court ofcompetent jurisdiction ?

No

B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1' Pursuant to Municipal code chapter 1-23, Article I ("Artícle l")(which the Applicantshould consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), ifthe Disclosíng Party submitting ttris e os ¡s ine nppr¡ãant and is doing business withthe city, then the Discrosing party certifies as for¡bws:

i' neither the Applicant nor any controtling person is currenfly indicted or chargedwith, or has admitted guilt of, or rras evei been convicted óf, or. placeo undersupervision for, any criminat offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracyto commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, per¡,r[, ãishonesty or deceit against an
.. officgr or employee of the City or any sister aôency; andii' the Applicant understands and acknôwledges"thàt compliance with Article I is acontinuing requírement for doing businessïith the city.

NorE: lf Article lapplies to.the Applicant, the permanent compliance tímeframe ínArticle I supersedes some five-year compliance t¡meirames in certifications 2 and 3below.

I certify the above to be true

2' The Disclosing Parly and, if the Disclosjng Party is a legal entity, all of thosepersons or entities identified in section ll.B.1. of tnis EDS:

a' are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declaredineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transa"t¡on, by any t"á"r"1, state orlocal unit of government;
b- have not, within a five year period precedíng the date of this EDS, beenconvicted of a crimínar offense, adjudged gùi1ry, or had a cívitjuogment

rendered agaínst them in connection w¡tn: obtáining, attempting to obtain,or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract undera public transaction; a violation of federal or 
"trt" 

antitrust statutes; fraud;
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embezzlement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records;
making false statements; or receiving stolen property;

c- are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmentat
entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the ôf"nies rLt ro.th in
clause 8.2.b. of this Section V;

d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, had one or
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or defautt;
and

e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted, adjudged guilty, or found liable in a civit proceeding, or in any criminal
or civil action, including actions concerníng environmental violations, instituted
by the City or by the federal government, ãny state, or any other unit of local
government.

I certify the above to be true

3. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affilíated Entity of eíther
the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents havã, orring tf," f¡ve years
before the date this EDS is signed, or, with respeit to a Contractor, an Affiliated
Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the five y"*r U"foruih" d"t" of
such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract oténg"g"ment in connection with the
Matter:

a. bríbed or attempted to bribe, or been convícted or adjudged guilty of bribery or
attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee of the City, n" dt"t" åf lll;;"¡r,
or any agency of the federal government or of any state or locat government in
the Uníted States of America, in that officer's or employee's officiãl capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party
to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement
or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in r"étr"int of fieedom of
competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or othenruise; or
made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b..above that is a matter
of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or
violated the provísions of
Ordinance).

I certify t.he above to be true

4. Neither the Disclosing Party, Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their
employees, officials, agents or partners, is baired from contracting with any unit of
state or local government as a result of engaging in or being conv-ícted of

. bid-rigging in viotation of 220 ILCS S/33E_3;. bid-rotating in violation of 720 ILCS S/33E4; or

d.
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' any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains
the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

I certify the above to be true

5' Neither the Dis.closing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the
following lists maintained by the Office of roreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of lnãustry and Security of the U.S.DepartmentofCommerceortheirsucceSSorS:the
List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, trrãentity t-irtãño ft," Debarred
List.

I certify the above to be true

6. The Disclosing Party understands and shail compry with the appricabre
requirements of , ir,"pi"i z_so
(lnspector General) rnd Ch"pt", 2if So (Cor J tnän¡rnicipat
Code.

f certify the above to be true

7 'To the best of the Disctosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all current employees of the Disclo"i"g päy *ho *"r",
at any time during the 12-month period preceding inã 

""""rtion 
date of this EDS, anemployee, or elected or appointed official, of thebity of chicago

None

9 To the best of the filcrgslnq 
pgrty's knowredge after reasonabre inquiry, the

followíng is a complete list of afl gifts that the DiJclosing party has given or caused
to be 9iven, at any time during the 12-month period prãceoini tne ãx"crtion date
of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, ãr Úr" city àt Chicago.
For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (i) anything made generally
available to city employees or to thL generat pubtic, 

"ri¡)?¿ã 
är åi¡"Lirovided

in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less thän g20 per
recipient.

None

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in
Code, the Disclosing party

is not a "financial institution,,

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS
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Any words or terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have
the same meanings when used in this part D.

1. ln accordance with Section 2-156-1 10 of the Municipal Code: Does any offìcial or
employee of the City have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name
of any other person or entity in the Matter?

No

E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

lf the Disclosing Party cannot make this verifìcation, the Disclosing party must
disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an atiachment in
the "Additional lnfo" tab. Failure to comply with these disclosure requirements may
m,ake any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable
by the City.

The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all
records of the Disclosíng Farty and any and alt predecessor entities regarding
records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder insurance policies
during the slavery era (íncluding insurance policies issued to slaveholders that
provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and the
Disclosing Party has found no such records.

I can make the above verification

SECTION VI .- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED
MATTERS

ls the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this Section Vl, tax credits
allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal
funding.

No

SEGTION VII .. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT
INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS
will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant and
the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement, City assistance, or
other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any
contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing party

-9-



understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on
which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances,
Chapters 2-156 and 2-164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties
and obligations on persons or entities seeking city contracts, work,
business, or transactions. A training program is available on line at
www.cityofchicago.orq/city/en/depts/ethics.html, and may also be obtained from
the city's Board of Ethics, 740 N. sedgwick st., suite s00, chicago, lL 60610,
(312)744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the ãppticabte
ordinances.

I acknowledge and consent t.o the above

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

C. lf the City determines that any information provided in this EDS ís false,
incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement in connection with
which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may
pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void),
at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in
the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other
transactions with the City. Remedies at law for a false statement of material fact
may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble damages.

D. lt is the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its tnternet
site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS
and any attachments to this EDS may be made available to the public on the
lnternet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or othen¡vise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and release" any
possible rights or claims which it may have against the City in connection with
the public release of information contained in this EDS and also authorizes the
city to verify the accuracy of any information submítted in this EDS.

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. ln the event of
changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the
City takes action on the Matter. lf the Matter is a contract being handled by the
City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update
this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matteis subject
to Article I of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT
lNELlGlBlLlTY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein
regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required by
chapter 1-23 and section 2-154-020 of the Municipal code

f acknowledge and consent to t.he above

The Disctosing Party represents and warrants that:

-10-



F'1- The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered
by the lllinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing party or its Affiliated
Entities delinquent in paying any fine, fee, tax or other charg€ owed to the City. This
includes, but is not limited to, allwater charges, sewer charges, tícense fees, þarkingtickets, property taxes or sales taxes.

f certify the above to be true

F.2 lf the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated
Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed b¡heU.S.E.P.A.onthefederalEXcludemaintainedbythe
U.S. General Servicer nOrinirtr"t,bn.

I certify t.he above to be true

F.3 lf the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing party will obtain
from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with
the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.1 . and F.2.
above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such
contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or thát the
Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not þrovided or cannot provide truthful
certifications.

I certify the above to be true

FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND
DEPARTMENT HEADS

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Appticant, and (b) any legal entity
which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceedini Í.s p"t""nt. lt is not
to be completed by any legal entíty which has only an indirect olnership interest in
the {pplicant.

Under , the Disclosing party must disclose
whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party"tr 

"ny 
Spouse or Domestic

Partner thereof currently has a "familial relationship" with 
"ny 

êluåt"d city official or
department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date th¡s EdS is signed,
the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic partñer
thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or
any cíty department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following,
whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece
or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-taw, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughier, stepbrother or
stepsister or half-brother or half-sister

-'t1 -



"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing party, if
the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the DisclosingÞ"rty, if the
Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and lim¡ted partners
of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers,
managing members and members of the Disclosing Party, it tne Disbiosing earã7 is'a
limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of tne Disclosing p"rty; and (3) anyperson having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest in thsDisclósing p;rry. '
"Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director,
cfief financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a tegat eìtity or any person exercising
similar authority.

Does the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently have a-"familial relationship" with an elected city official or
department head?

No

ADDITIONAL INFO

Please add any additional explanatory information here. lf needed you may add an
attachment below. Please note that your EDS, including all attachments, becomes
available for public víewing upon contract award. Your attachments will be viewable
"as is" without manual redaction by the City. You are responsible for redacting any
non-public information from your documenis before uploading

Líst of vendor attachments uploaded by Cíty staff

None.

List of attachments uploaded by vendor

None -

CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is
authorized to execute this EDS on behalf of the Disilosing party, and (2) warrants
that all certificatíons and statements contained in this EDS are true, acturate and
complete as of the date furnished to the City.

lsl 021O212012
Ms. Maureen Theresa Martino
Executive Dírector
Lake View East Chamber of Commerce
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This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which
is filed electronícally with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must bã made
electronically, alterations on this printed copy are void and of no effect.

-13-



EDS Number:28907
Certificate Printed on: 02/02/2012

CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR

Date of This Filing:O2/02/20t203:45 pM
Original Filing Date:02/02/2012 03:45 pM

Disclosing Parry: Lake view East chamber of Title:Executive Director
Commerce
Filed by: Ms. Maureen Theresa Martino

Matter: Authorizing the expenditure of funds
from previous tax years from SSA #8, deliver
special services in the previous SSA #8 and
authorize a service provider agreement.
Applicant: Lake View East Chamber of
Commêrce
Specification #: 90866
Contract #:

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with
the Cify. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contatt with other
required documents pertaining to the'Matter. For additional guidance ãs to when to provide this
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the
Matter or consult with your City contact.

A copy of the EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting
htçs://webapps-cityofchicago.orgÆDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS Search.
Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online onìy to the disclosing parry and the City,
but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Acr. The filing is visibie online ro,f,"
public after contract award.



EXHIBIT 3

CONTRACTOR INSURANCE PROVISIONS

INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS
Special Services Area

Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor's own expense, during the term of the
Agreement and time period following expiration if Contractor is required to rãtum and perform
any of the Services or Additional Services under this Agreement, the insurance coverage and
requirements specifìed below, insuring all operations related to the Agreement.

A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

W'orkers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law, covering all
employees who are to provide a service under this Agreement and Employers 1-iaùitity
coverage with limits of not less than $100.000 each accident, illness o, dir"ur".

Commercial General Liability (primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000.000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal irrjr.y and property damage
liability' Coverages must include the following: All premis"r'unã operations,
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense and contractuál liabitity
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent). The City of Chicago is to be
named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory tasis for aiy liability
arising directly or indirectly from the work or Services.

Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles 1o*n.á, non-owned and hired) are used in corurection with
Services to be performed, Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with
limits of not less than $500.000 per occunence for bodily injury and properry damage.
The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on-a primary, non-
contributory basis.

Professional Liabilitv

when any professional consultants (e.g.; cpA's, Attorney, Architects, Engineers)
perform work in connection with this Agreement, Professional Liabiliiy Insurance
covering acts, enors, or omissions must be maintained with limits of nåt less than
$500.000. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive date must

l)

2)

3)

4)



s)

B.

coincide with, or precede start of work on the Contract. A claims-made policy which is
not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of two lzjyears.

Crime

The Contractor is responsible for all persons handling funds under this Agreement,
against loss by dishonesty, robbery, burglary, theft, destruction or disappearance,
computer fraud, credit card forgery and other related crime risks.

SECURITY FIRMS

If the Contractor enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm, such Security Firm must be
certified by State of Illinois, and the Security Firm's employees must be registered and certified
by the State. Contractor must ensure and require any Seclrity Firm subcontãctor to comply with
the Risk Management Division approved Security Firm Insuiance Provision set forth in p'xtriuit +of this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by references as though fully *t f"rth
herein.

C. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Housing and Economic
Development (HED), City Hall, Room 1006, l2l Norrh LaSalle Streei 60602, original
Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Agreerient,
and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an
expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Agreement. Contractor must submit
evidence of insurance on the City of Chicago Insurance Cãrtificate Form (copy attached as
Exhibit-) or equivalent prior to execution of this Agreement. The receipt of any åéninl"" J".,
not constitute agreement by the City that the insurance requirements in the Agreement have been
fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in Ãmpliance with all
Agreement requirements. The failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance
evidence from Contractor is not a waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to
obtain and maintain the specified coverages. Contractor must advise .all insurers of the
Agreement provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not relieve
Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as specified in this Agreement. Nonfulfillment
of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Agreement, and the City retains the
right to suspend this Agreement until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Agreement
may be terminated.

The Contractor must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the City in the event
coverage is substantially changed, canceled or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by
Contractor.



Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation
against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and
responsibilities specified within the Agreement or by law.

insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute
insurance provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

Any
with

The required insurance to be carried is not
indemnification language in this Agreement or
Agreement given as a matter of law.

limited by any limitations expressed in the
any limitation placed on the indemnity in this

If Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the
joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

Contractor must require all Subcontractors to provide the insurance required in this Agreement,
or Contractor may provide the coverages for Subcontractors. All Subcontractors are subject to
the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

If Contractor or Subcontractor desire additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these
requirements.



EXHIBIT 4

SECURITY FIRM INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Security Firm must provide and maintain at security Firm,s own expense, untilcontract completion and during the time period following expiration if security Firm is requiredto return and perform any additional work, the insuran"ã.orr"ruges and r"q.rir"-"rrts specifiedbelow, insuring all operations related to the Contract.

A. INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

workers compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering allemployees who are to provide work under ihis contract td Employers Liability coveragewith limits of not less than $500.000 each accident, illness or disease.

l)

2) Commercial General Liabilitv (primary and Umbrella)

3)

4)

commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000.000 per occuffence for bodily injury, personal trrlil;; ;;";ä damageliability' coverages must include the 

-foilowing: 
All premises and operations,products/completed operations, separation of insureãs, defensã, and contractual liability(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equiválent but coverage must includeEndorsement cG 22 74). The ssAC, city of chicago and contractor are to be named asan additional insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arisingdirectly or indirectly from the work.

Automobile Liability (primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection withwork to be performed, the security Firm must provide Automobile Liability Insurancewith limits of not less than $ 1.000.000 p.. o."urr"nce for bodily injury and propertydamage' The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as an additional
insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis.

Professional Liabilitv

Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained bythe Security Firm with limits of not less than $1.000.000. when policies are renewed orreplaced, the policy retroactive date must .oin.id" *itl¡ or precede, start of work on the



Contract- A claims-made policy which is not renewed or replaced must have an extended
repoÍing period of two (2) years.

B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The Security Firm must furnish the Contractor and City of Chicago, Department of
Housing. and Economic Development (HED), City Hall, Room 1006, l2l North LaSalle Street
60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of
this Contract, and Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages
have an expiration or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The receipt of any
certificate does not constitute agreement by the Contractor that the insurance requirements in thl
Contract have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in
compliance with all Contract requirements. The failure of the Contractor to obtain certificates or
other insurance evidence from Security Firm is not a waiver by the Contractor of any
requirements for the Security Firm to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Security
Firm shall advise all insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming
insurance does not relieve Security Firm of the obligation to provide insurance as specifieã
herein. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract,
and the Contractor retains the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided,
or the Contract may be terminated

The Security Firm must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the Contractor in
the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed.
Any deductibles or self insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be bome by
Security Firm.

The Security Firm hereby waives and agrees to
subrogation against the Contractor and the City
agents, or representatives.

require their insurers to waive their rights of
of Chicago, its employees, elected officials,

The coverages and limits fumished by Security Firm in no way limit the Security Firm's
liabilities and responsibilities specified within the contract or by law.

Any insurance or self insurance programs maintained by the Contractor do not contribute with
insurance provided by the Security Firm under the Contract.

The required insurance to be carried is
indemnification language in this Contract
Contract given as a matter of law.

If Security Firm is a joint venture or limited
the joint venture or limited liability company

not limited by any limitations expressed in the
or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this

liability company, the insurance policies must name
as a named insured.



The Security Firm must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or
Security Firm may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to
the same insurance requirements of Security Firm unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

If Security Firm or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.
Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modi$,, dålete, altei or change these
requirements.



EXHIBIT 5

Prevailing Wages
(See Attached)



Cook Courty Prevailing ìù/age for February 2012 http: //www.sate. il.us/agency/i d ol iratesIEVENMO/COOK999g-htrn

Cook County Prevailing Wage for February 2012

Trade Name RG TYP C Base FRMÀN *M-F>B OSA OSH H/W Pensn Vac Trng

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN ALL 35.200
ÀSBESTOS ABT-MEC BLD 32.850
BOILERMAKER BLD 43.450
BRICK MASON BLD 39.780
CARPENTER ALL 40.710
CEMENT MASON ALL 41.850
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER BLD 33.600
COMM. ELECT, BLD 36.440
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP ALL 41.850
ELECÎRÏC PWR GRNDMAN ALL 32.640
ELECTRIC PbIR L]NEMAN ALL 41,850
ELECTRICIAN ALL 4O.4OO
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR BLD 48.560
FENCE ERECTOR ALL 32.660
GLAZIER BLD 3B.5OO
HTIFROST TNSULATOR BLD 43.800
TRON WORKER ALL 40.750
LABORER ALL 35 - 2OO
LATHER ALL 40.110
MACH]NIST BLD 43. 1 60
MARBLE FTNTSHERS ALL 29.100
MARBLE MASON BLD 39-O3O
MATERIAL TESTER I ALL 25.200
MÀ,TERTALS TESTER II ALL 3O.2OO
MILLWR]GHT ALL 40..]10
OPERATTNG ENGINEER BLD 1 45.100
OPERATTNG ENGTNEER BLD 2 43.800
OPERATTNG ENG]NEER BLD 3 4I.250
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 4 39.500
OPERJ\TING ENGINEER BLD 5 48.850
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 6 46.100
OPER.AT]NG ENGINEER BLD ? 48.100
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT I 51.300
OPERATTNG ENGINEER EL'T 2 49.800
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 3 44.350
OPERATTNG ENGINEER FLT 4 36.850
OPER.A,TING ENGINEER HIdY 1 43.300
OPER.ATING ENGTNEER HWY 2 42.150
OPER.ATING ENGINEER HVCY 3 40,?OO
OPERATTNG ENGINEER HWY 4 39.300
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 5 3B,1OO
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 6 46.300
OPERATTNG ENGTNEER HVüY 7 44.300
ORNAMNTL IRON VSORKER ALL 4O.2OO
PATNTER ALL 38. OOO

PAINTER SIGNS BLD 33.920
PILEDRIVER ALL 40.110
PIPEFITTER BLD 44.050
PLASTERER BLD 39.250
PLUMBER BLD 44.750
ROOFER BLD 3?.650
SHEETMETAL WORKER BLD 40.560
STGN HANGER BLD 29.460
SPRINKLER FTTTER BLD 49 -2OO
STEEL ERECTOR ALL 40.?50
STONE MASON BLD 39.780
TERRÄZZO FINTSHER BLD 35. 150

35.700 1.5
0.000 1 - 5

47 .360 2.0
43.760 1.5
42.1'10 I.5
43.850 2,O
0.000 2.0

38.940 1.5
46.850 1.5
46.850 1.s
46.850 1.5
43.000 I .5
54 .630 2 .O
34.660 1.5
40.000 1-5
4 6.300 1.5
42 .150 2 .0
3s. 950 1 .5
42.774 r.5
45.160 r.5
0.000 1.5

42,930 L-5
0-000 1_s
0.000 1 .5

42 .1't O 1, .5
49.r00 2.O
49 -700 2.0
49 -rO0 2.0
49 -IOO 2 -O
49.tOO 2.O
49 -r00 2.0
49.100 2.O
51 .300 1.5
51.300 1.5
51.300 1.5
51.300 1.5
47.300 1.5
47 .300 l_.5
47 .300 1.5
47.300 1.5
47 .300 1.5
47.300 1.5
47.300 1.5
42.450 2.O
42 .150 r .5
38.090 1.5
42.110 r.5
47.050 1.5
41. 610 1 .5
46.750 1.5
40. 650 1.5
43.800 1 .5
29.960 7.5
51 .200 1 .5
42 .150 2 .0
43 .'t 60 7 .5
0.000 1.5

12.18 8.820
r0.82 10.66
6.9'7 0 12 .67
9.300 11.17
12 -34 11 .25
10.70 10-76
9 -200 6.680
8.420 8.910
10. 27 13.01
8.000 I0 _12
I0.21 13.01
13. 83 1 .920
11.03 11.96
12 .42 10 - 00
77.49 74 .64
IO.82 11 .86
13.20 19.09
12.I8 B. 82O
12.34 17.25
7.980 B .950
9.300 11.17
9.300 11.17
12.IB 8.820
L2.),8 B.820
12.34 77.25
14.40 9-550
14 .40 9. 550
14.40 9.550
t4 .40 9. 550
14-40 9.550
14 .40 9. 550
L4 .40 9. 550
11 .70 8.0s0
1,r.'70 8.050
11.70 8.050
11.70 8.050
14 .40 9.550
14.40 9.550
74.40 9.550
74.40 9.550
14 .40 9.550
]-4.40 9.550
14-40 9.550
L2 .61 74 .BI
9.750 11,10
2 .600 2 .1rO
L2.34 rL.25
8.460 13.85
10. 60 10.69
11. 59 9.060
1.750 6.570
9. BB0 1 6.54
4 .800 2 .980
9.750 I .200
).3.20 19.09
9.300 11.17
9.200 9.070

0.000 0.450
0.000 0 _'t20
0.000 0.350
0.000 0 _ 730
0. 000 0.530
0.000 0.320
0.000 0.580
0.000 0.700
0.000 0.320
0.000 0 .240
0.000 0.320
0.000 0.7s0
2.9r0 0.000
0.000 0.2sQ
0.000 0.840
0.000 0 .120
0. 000 0.350
0.000 0.450
0.000 0.530
0.000 0.000
0.000 0. 660
0.000 0.730
0.000 0.4s0
0.000 0 _ 450
0.000 0 , s30
1.900 r.250
1.900 7.250
1.900 7.250
1.900 \.250
1.900 r.250
1.900 r.250
1.900 I.250
1.900 1.150
1.900 1.150
1.900 1.150
1 .900 1 .150
1.900 7.250
1.900 r.250
1.900 r.250
1.900 1 _250
1.900 r.zso
1.900 7.250
1.900 r.250
0.000 0.500
0.000 0.1't0
o. ooo o. oo0
0.000 0. 530
0.000 1.820
0.000 0.550
0.000 0.780
0.000 0.430
0.000 0. 630
0.000 0. 000
0.000 0.450
0.000 0. 350
0.000 0.730
0.000 0.430

1-5
1.5
2-0
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
2.0
1.5
2.0
1.5
2.0
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.Q
1.5
1.5
1-5
1q
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
2.0
1.5
1.5
1.5

2.0
2-0
2.0
2.O
2.O
2.0
2-O
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2-0
2.O
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2tO
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
1.5
1.5
2.0
2.O
2.0
2.O
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0
2.0

.5
E.J
É

c.J

.5
t.J
É

2.0
1.5
1.5

I of1 2/1120122:26PM



Cook County Prevailing Vy'age for Febrvry 2012

TERRÀZZO MÀSON
TILE MASON

h@://www.state -i I -us/agency/idol/ratesÆVENMO/COOK9999.htn

BrD 39.010 42.010 t_..5 I.5 2-0 9.200 10-41 0.000 0.510
BLD 40.490 44.490 2.0 L_5 2-0 9.200 8.390 0.000 0.640

TRÀFFrC SAFETY WRKR HvtY 28.250 29.850 1.5 7.5 2.0 4.896 4.L15 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRTVER E ALr 1 30.700 31.350 1.5 7.5 2.0 6.750 5.450 0.000 0.150
rRUCK DRTVER E ALL 2 30.950 31.350 1.5 7.5 2.0 6.750 5.450 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRTVER E ALL 3 31.150 31.350 1.5 7.5 2.0 6.?50 5.450 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRTVER E ALL 4 31.350 31".350 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.750 5.450 0.000 0.150
TRUCK DRTVER I,'l ALr, 132.550 33.100 1.5 7.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0-000 0.000
TRUCK DRTVER !V ALL 2 32.700 33.100 1.5 1-5 2-0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TRUCK DRtvER Íû ALL 3 32.900 33.100 t_.5 r.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
ÎRUCK DRTVER û{ Art 4 33.100 33.100 1.5 r-5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
TUCKPOINTER BtD 39.950 40.950 .5 7.5 2.0 8.180 10.57 0.000 0.790

Legend: M-F>8 lovertire is required for èny hou! greater than I worked
each day, Monday through Friday.
OSÀ (Overtine is reguired for every hour worked on Saturday)
OSH (Overtime is required fo! every hour worked on Sundåy and Holidays)
Hlt¡l {Health 6 We.lfare Insurance)
Pensn (Pension)
Vac (Vacacion)
Trng (Training)

Explanations

COOK COUNTY

The folLowÍng Ìist is considered as those days for which holiday rates
of wages for work performed apply: New years Day, Memorial Day,
Fourth of Ju1y, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and
Veterans Day in some cLassifications/counties. Generally, any of
these holidays which fal-l on a Sunday is cel_ebrated on the fol-lowing
Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the
apprôpriate overtime rate for holiday pay, Common practice in a given
Iocal- may aÌter certain days of ceÌebrati.on. If in doubt, please
check with IDOL.

TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST) - That part of the county West of Barrington
Road.

EXPLANATÏON OF CLASSES

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material_/mold and hazardous
materiafs from any place in a building, including mechanicaL systems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed- This includes the
removal of asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from
ductwork or pipes in a building when the buitding is to be demolished
at the time or at some close future date.
ASBESTOS - MECIANICAL - rernovaL of asbestos material from mechanical
systems, such as pipes, ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical
systems are to remain.

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER

The groutÍng, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of tiLe, whether
for interior or exterior purposes, aIl burned, glazed or unglazed
products; a11 çomposition materials, granite til-es, warning detectable
tiLes, cement tiLes, epoxy composite materials, pavers, glass,
mosai-cs, fiberglass, and al-l substitute materials, for tiLe made in
tile-like units; all mixtures i-n tile like form of cement, metals, and
other materials that are for and intended for use as a finished fl-oor
surface, stair treads, promenade roofs, walks, walLs, ceilings,
swimmi.ng pools, and afÌ other places where tile is to form a finished
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interior or exterior- The mixing of arl setting mortars including but
not l-imited to thin-set mortars, epoxies, walÌ mud, and any other
sand and cement mixtures or adhesives when used in the preparaLion,
installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materiars-
The handling and unJ-oading of al_L sand, cement, J.ime, tile,
fixtures, equi-pment, adhesives, or any other materials to be used in
the preparation, install-ation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or
similar material-s. ceramic Til-e Finishers shall fill all joints and
voids regardless of method on all tile work, particularly and
especialJ-y after instaÌlation of said til-e work. Application of any
and all protective coverings to a-ll tlæes of tire instalLations
including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products,
tapes, and all polyethylene coverlngs, plywood, masonite, cardboard,
and any new type of products that may be used to protect tj_Le
installations, Blastrac equipment, and all froor scarifying equipment
used in prepari-ng fLoors to receive tile. The cl-ean up and removal of
aI-l waste and materiaLs. A1l- dernolltion of existing tile floors and
wal-l-s to be re-tiLed.

COMMUNÏCATTONS ELECTRT CIAN

rnsta-llation, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and service
of radio, television, recording, voice sound vision production and
reproduction, teJ-ephone and teJ-ephone interconnect, facsimile, data
apparatus, coaxial, fibre optj-c and wirel-ess equipment, appliances and
systems used for the transmission and reception of signars of any
nature, business, domestic, commercial-, education, enter.tainment, and
residential purposes, incJ.uding but not limited to, communication and
telephone, electronic and sound equi_pment, fibre optic and data
communication systems, and the performance of any task directly
related to such instaÌlation or.service whether at new or existing
sites, such tasks to include the placing of wire and cabl-e and
el-ectrical power conduit or other raceway work wit.hin the equipment
room and pulling wire and/or cabfe through conduit and the
instaLLation of any incidental- conduit, such that the emproyees
covered hereby can complete ány job in full.

MARBLE FINISHER

Loading and unloading trucks, distribution of arr materials (all
stone, sand, etc, ), stocking of floors with materiar, performing a1J.
rigging for heavy work, the handÌing of all material that Bay be
needed for the instal-lation of such materials, building of
scaffolding, polishing if needed, patöhing, waxing of materiar if
damaged, pointing up, caulking, grouting and cÌeaning of marble,
holding water on diamond or carborundum bLade or sabr for setters
cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparation of
material-' drilJ-ing of hores for wires that anchor materlal set by
setters, mixing up of moJ.ding praster for instarlation of materiã1,
mÍxing up thin set for the lnstaÌÌation of materi-al, mixing up of sand
to cement for the installation of material- and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handJ_ing of alt
material in the erection or instalLation of interior marbÌe, sÌate,
travertine, art marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other stones (meaning as to stone any foreign or domestic
material-s as are specified and used in buil-ding interiors and
exteriors and customarily known as stone in the trade) , carrara,
sanionyx, vitrolite and simil-ar opaque glass and the taying of alI
marbl-e tiJ-e, terrazzo tire, slate tire and precast tiJ.e, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other materials that may be used as substitutes
for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interior
and exterior which are i-nstalled in a simiLar manner-
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MÂTERTAL TESTER r: Hand coring and drilling for testing of material"s,.
field inspection of uncured concrete and asphal_t.

MATERIAL TESTER II: Field inspection of we1ds, structural steel_,
fireproofing, masonry, soil, facade, reinforcing steel_, formwork,
cured concrete, and concrete and asphaJ_t batch plants; adjusting
proportions of bituminous mixtures.

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUTLDTNG

Class 1. Àsphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader,. Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson Attachment; Batch Plant,. Benoto (requires Two Engineers);
BoiÌer and Throttle Valve,- Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix plant,
combination Back Hoe Front End-l-oader Machine,- compressor and rhrottle
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 2-lE cu. ft; Concrete
Paver 278 cu. ft, and Under: Concrete pl-acer,' Concrete placing Boom,,
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted) ,.. Concrete Tower; Cranes, ALL,. Cranes,
Hammerhead,' Cranes, (GCI and sinil-ar Type),, Creter Crane,- Crusher,
Stone, etc.; Derricks, .A11,. Derricks, Traveling; FormJ_ess Curb and
Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating,- Grouting Machines; Hiqhtift Shovels
or Front Endloader 2-I/4 yd. and overi Hoists, Elevators, outside
type rack and pinion and similar machj-nes,- Hoists, One, Two and Three
Drum,' Hoists, T!ùo Tugger one Floor; HydrauJ-ic Backhoes,' Hydraulic Boom
Trucks,' Hydro Vac (and simil-ar equipment),. Locomotives, AÌf ; Motor
Patrol,' Lubrication Technician; ManipuJ_ators; pile Drivers and Skid
Rig,' Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; pump Cretes Dual Ram,. pump
Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type pumps,- Gypsum Bulker and pump;
Raised and Blind Hole Drill; Roto Mitl Grinder; Scoops - Tractor
Drawn,- Slip-Form Paver,' Straddle Buggies; lournapull-,. Tractor brith
Boom and Side Boom; Trenching Machines.

Class 2. Boif ers; Broom, Al-L Power Propeì-J_ed,- BuLf dozers; Concrete
Mixer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Portable; Forklift Trucks,.
Highlift Shovels or Front EndLoaders under 2-L/4 yd.; Hoists,
Automatic,' Hoists, Inside Elevators; Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machine;
Hoists, Tugger Sing].e Drum; Rock Drill- (Self-propelled); Rock D¡il1
(Truck Mounted); Rollers, All,' Steam Generators; Tractors, A1l;
Tractor Drawn Vibratory Roller; VÍinch Trucks wj.th DA" Frame.

Cl-ass 3. Air Compressor; Conbination SmalÌ Equipment Operator;
Generators,' Heaters, Mechanical,. Hoists, fnside Elevators; Hydraulic
Power Units (Pi1ç Driving, Extracting, and Drilling),- pumps, over 3"
(1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300 ft.); Low Boys; pumps, Ítel-l
Points; Welding Machines (2 through 5),- Wi_nches, 4 Snall Electric
Drill 9finches,' Bobcats (up to and including % cu yd. ) -

class 4 - Bobcats and/or other skid steer Loaders (other than bobcats
up to and incl-uding "< cu yd.); Oilers; and Brick Forklift.

Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman.

C1ass 6. Gradall.

Cl-ass 7 . Mechanics.

OPERÄTING ENGTNEERS - HIGHIJ.7AY CONôTRUCÎION

class 1. AsphaJ-t Pl-ant; Asphalt Heater.and pl-aner combination; Asphalt
Heater scarfire; Asphalt spreader; Autograder/GoMÀco or other similar
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes with caisson Attachment; Ballast
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Regurator; BeLt Loader; caisson Rigs; car Dumper,- centrar Redi-Mix
Plant; cornbination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe.
Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck
Mounted); concrete conveyor,' concrete paver over 2iE cu. ft.,. concrete
Placer,' concrete Tube Fl-oat; cranes, ar-l attachments; cranes, Tower
cranes of all types: creter crane: crusher, stone, etc.; Derricks,
All,- Derrick Boats,' Derricks, TraveJ-ing; DoweÌl Machine with Air
Compressor,. Dredges,. Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader,
Elevating; Grader, Motor Grader, Motor patrol, Auto patroL, Form
Grader, Pul,l- Grader, subgrader; Guard RaiL post Driver Truck Mounted,.
Holsts, One, Two and Three Drum; Hydraulic Backhoes,. Backhoes with
shear attachments,' Lubrication Technician,- Manipurators,. Muckíng
Machine,' Pil-e Drivers and skid Rig; pre-stress Machine,. pump cretes
Dual Ram,' Rock Drill- - crawrer or skid Rig; Rock Drirt - Truck
Mounted,' Rock/Track Tamperi Roto Mill_ Grinder,- slip-Form paver,. soil_Test DriIl Rig (Truck Mounted); Straddle Buggies,. Hydraulic
Telescoping Form (TunneL); Tractor Drawn Belt Loade, (ritn attached
pusher - two engineers),. Tractor with Boom; Tractaire with
Attachments; Trenching Machlne; Truck Mounted Concrete pump with Boom,.
Raised or Bl-ind Hole DriLls (Tunnel Shaft); Underground Boring and/or
Mining Machines 5 ft. in diarneter and over tunneÌ, etc,. underground
Boring and/or Mining Machines under 5 ft. in diameter,- wheef
Excavator,. Vùidener (APSCO) .

cl-ass 2. Batch Pl-ant,- Bituminous Mixer,- Boiler and Throttle vaÌve;
Bull-dozers; Car Loader Trailing Conveyors; Combination Backhoe Front
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or withattachments); Compressor and Throttl_e Val-ve,. Compressor, Conmon
Receiver (3); concrete Breaker or Hydro Harnrner; conõrete Grinding
Machine; concrete Mixer or paver ?s series to and including 2i c.l.ft.,' concrete spreader,' concrete curing Machine, Burlap Machine,
BeLting Machine and seaLing Machine; concrete vüheel saw,. conveyor Muckcars (HagJ-und or similar Type),' DriJ-J-s, Ar-l-; Finishing Machine -concretei Highì-ift shovels or Front Endroader; Hoist - sewer Dragging
Machine,' Hydraulic Boom Trucks (AlI Attachments); Hydro-Blaster,- Áll-Locomotives, Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Units (including articulatins) /2ton capacity or more,' Non seLf-Loading Ejection Dumpr pump cretes:
squeeze cretes - screw Type pumps, Gypsum Bulker and pump,. Rorrer,
Asphal.t; Rotary snow plows; Rototilrer, seaman, etc., self-propeli-ed,.
scoops - Tractor Drawn,' self-propelled compactor,. spreader - cnip -Stone, etc.,'Scraper; Scraper - prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless ofsize): Tank car Heater; Tractors, push, pul-ríng sheeps Eoot, Disc,
Compactor, etc.r Tug Boats.

cl-ass 3. goilers; Brooms, Al-L power propelled; 'cement 
suppJ-y Tender;

Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag anà Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.;
Fireman on Boilers; Forkrift rrucks; Groutlng Machine; Hoists,
Automatic,' Hoists, Ai-r- Elevators; Hoists, Tugger single Drum; Jeep
Diggers,' Low Boys; Pipe Jacking Machines; post-Hole Digger,. power saw,concrete Power Driven; pug Mil1s; Rol1ers, other than Asphart; seed
and Straw Blower,' Steam Generators; Sturnp Machine; V,linch Trucks with
"À" Frame; Work Boats; Tamper-Form-Motor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor,- Combination - SmalL Equipment Operator,.
DirectionaL Boring Machine; Generators,. Heaters, MechanicaL; Hydraulic
Power Unit (pile Driving, Extracting, or Drij-l-in9); Hydro_ BLaster;
Light Plants, Ä1I (1 through 5); punps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceeda total of 300 ft.); Pumps, Well points,.Tractaire; Welding Machines(2 through 5),' Winches, 4 Smal-l Electric Drill Ï¡iinches.

Cl-ass 5. Bobcats (alI),- Brick Forkl_ifts,. Oilers_

http://www.state. i l.us/agency/idol/ratesÆrÆNMO/C@K9999.htn
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Class 6- FieLd Mechanics and FieLd Wel-ders

Cl-ass 7. Gradall and machines of Like nature.

OPERATING ENGTNEER _ FLOATING

Class 1. Craft Foreman; Diver/lùet Tender,- and Engineer (hydraulic
dredge )

CLass 2. Crane/Backhoe Operator,- 70 Ton or over Tug Operator;
Mechanic,/vùelder; Assistant Engineer (Hydraul-ic Dredge) ; Leverman
(Hydraufic Dredge); Diver Tender,- Friction and Lattice Boom Cranes.

crass 3- Deck Equiprnent operator, Machineryrnan,' Maintenance of crane
(over 50 ton capacity); Tug/taunch OperaLor,- Loader/Dozer and Iike
equipment on Barge; and Deck Machinery, etc.

Cl-ass 4. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman/Fireman (4 Equipment
Units or More) t Of.f, Road Trucks (2 ton capacity or more); Deck Hand,
Tug Engineer', Crane Maintenance 50 Ton Capacity and Under or Backhoe
Vùeighing 115,000 pounds or Less,. and Assistant Tug Operator.

TERRAZZO EINISHER

The handling of sand, cement, marbJ-e chips, and aLI other material_s
that may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grinding, grouting, cleaning and seaLing of aJ-L Marb1e, Mosaj.c, and'Terrazzo work, fì.oors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addition, assi-sting and aiding Marble, Masonic, and
Terrazzo Mechanics.

TRAEFÏC SAFETY

work associated with barricades, horses and drums used to reduce Lane
usage on highway worl, the instal_Lation and removal of temporary J_ane
markings, and the installation and removal of temporary road signs.

TRUCK DRIVER _ BUTLDTNG, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST E WEST

CLass 1. Two or three Axl-e Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for
transportation purposes,. Air Compressors and Wetding Machines,
including those pulJ-ed by cars, pick-up trucks and tractors;
Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers,- Batch Hoppermani Car and Truck
Washers; Carry-alJ-s, Fork Lifts and nòisters; Hefpers; Mechanics
HeJ-pers and Greasers; Oil Distributors 2-man operation; pavement
Breakers,' Pole Trailer, up to 40 feet,. power Mor¡rer Tractors,.
Self-propelled Chip Spreader,. Skipman; Sl-urry Trucks, 2-man operation;
Slurry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; Teamsters,- Unskil_Ied
Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights, barricades, and
portable toilets on the job site.

CÌass 2. Four axLe trucks,. Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
TurnatraiÌers when puì.ling other than seLf-Ioading equipment or
similar equipment under 16 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under ? yards;
Ready-rnix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 AxIes.

Class 3. Five axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 yards and over;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, EucIids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapuJ.J-s when purring other than self-loading equipment or simil_ar
eguipment over 16 cubic yards; Explosives and/or Fission Material_
Trucks.' Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over,' Mobile cranes while in transit;
Oil Distributors, 1-man operation; Pole Trailer, over 40 feet; pole

http://www.state. i I.us/agency/i dol/rates/EVENMO/COOK9999.hün
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and Expandable Trai-r-ers hauJ.ing materiar- over 50 feet long,. sJ_urrytrucks, l-man operationi Winch irucks, 3 axLes or more;Mechanic--Truck !ùel,der and Truck painter.

cl-ass 4 ' six axle- trucks; Duar--purpose vehicr.es, such as mountedcrane trucks with hoist and accessori.s; foreman,. ¡¿aster Mechanic;self-loading equipment rike p.B. and trucks with scoops on the front.
Other CLassifications of I¡ùork:

For definitions of cr-assifications not otherwise set out, theDepartment generarJ-y has on fire such definitions which areavailable. If a task to be performêd is noi ;;j..; ro one of thecLassifications of.pay set out, .the Department 
"íii upon beingcontacted state which neighboring county has such a c_r.assification and'provide such rate, such rate being deemed to exist by reference inthis document, tf-:o neighboring county rate appl-ies to the task,the Department shaLl undertake a special determination, such specialdetermination being then deemed tä have existed under thisdetermination. rf a project requires these, ot u'y cr-assificatj-on notlisted, pJ-ease contact rDoL ar 2r7-182-r?1ô i;.-;åge rares orclarifications -

LANDSCAPIN" 
,

Landscaping work farrs under the existing crassifications for J.aborer,operating engineer and truck driver.. The work performed bylandscape plantsman and landscape laborer is coväred by the existÍngcrassification of laborer. Thè work performed bf randscape operators(regardless of eguipment used or its size) is covóred by thecl.assificatj-ons of.operating engineer. The work performed bylandscape truck drivers (regardÍess of size of tiuck driven) iscovered by the classifications of truck driver_
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(See Attached)



CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND

pnufu $II ¿' en hg tÍ¡eøe ffirewnÍs, rhat we,

Principal, hereinafter referred to as Contracto( and
, Surety

of the Counry of Cook and State of lllinois, a¡e held and firnrly bound unto the CITY oF cHIcAGo in the penal sum of

lawful money of the United states, for the payment of which sum of mone¡ well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

executors, administrators, successors and assigns,jointly and severall¡ f¡rmly by th(se presents,

þe!,lefi with our seals and dated this day of

6\t [nnùifisí ú tl¡e $tutre @bligatirl iø xatb¡,

Tt"t ,"h"r"ìs the above bounden Contractor has entered into a certain contracl

Specification No.

A.D., 20

with the CITY OF CHICAGO, bearing

all in conformity with said contract' for,
Contract No.

The. said contract is incorporated herein by rcfcrcnce in irs entirety, including without limitation, any and all indemnification provisions'

Now, if the said contràctor shall in all respecs well and truly keep and perform the said contract on its part' in accordance with

the terms and provisions of all of the contract Documents comprising said contract, and in the time and manner thercin prescribed. and

further shall save, indemnify, and keep harrnless the city of ctricagoãgainst all loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements' costs and

expenses which may in anywise accrue against said city of chicago, in .onr.qu"n"e of thi granting of said c:ntract' or which may in

anywise result therefrom, ár which may result from suiá üabiliçy, ãr which may in anywise result from any injuries to, or death of' any

person, or darnage to any real or penonal property, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with' work performed or to be

performed under said contracr by said Contracior, its Agents, Empioyees or vy'orkmen, assignees. subcontactors' or anyone else, in any

respect whateveç or which may result on account of any infringèmeni of any patent by reason of'the maærials, macilnery, devices or

apparatus used in rhe performance of said conract, and moreovãr, shall pay to.s"i¿ c¡ty any sum or sun$ of money determined by the

purchasing Agenr, and/or by a court of comperent jurisdiction, to be due said city by rcason of any failure or neglect in the performance

of rhe requirements. of said iontract, wherefore the said purchasing Agent.shall have elected to suspend or cancel the same, and shall pay

all claims and demands whatsoever, which may accrue to each and every materialman and subcontractor' and to eacl¡ and every Pcrson .

who shall be employed by rhe said contractor or by its assignees and subcontractors, in or about the performance of said contracL and

with wages paid at prevailing wage rates if so required uy saio conrract, and shall insure its liability to pay the compensation' and shall

pay all ctaims and demands ro. 
"o*p"notion 

which may accrue to each and every person who shall be employed by them or any of them in or

about the performance ol said contracr, or which shalí."*t" to the benefgrTo * dependents of any such Pefsoß, under ttp provisions

of the workers, compensation Acr, g20 IrcS 305, as amended, and the workers' occupational Disease Act' 820 ILcs 310' as amended

(hereinafter rcfened to as "Acts") rhen is this obligation to be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effecL



And it is hereby expressly understood and agreed, and made a condition hereof, ¡hat any judgemenr rcndered against said city inany suit based upon any loss' damages, claims' liaÙiliti"s' ¡uàge,nen¡s, ;;'"r expenses which may-in anywise accrue againsr said cityas a consequence of the granting of said iontract, or whici rnay in anywiie rcsurt therefrom. or *'hich may in anywise result from anyinjuries to' or death of' anv 
ryogn' or damage to-any real or æå.".ií-p..ry, J;.onääiriri"äi*"rr, from, or in connection wirh,work pcrformed' or to be performø under sãd contact by said contractor or ¡rs agents, emproyees or workmen, assignees, subcontrac-tors' or ¿¡nyone else a¡rd also any decision of the Indusriat com¡nission ri ,rrl s"," oî lünois, ;ã ;; ãi., or 

"ou.t 
based upon such deci_sion' or judgement thereon, rendered against said ciry of chicago in *y ,ui, o, .laim arising under the aforementioned Acts when noticeof tlie pendency or arbitration proceedings or suit shall have be-en gi"; ;;ià conrractor, snä¡ ue 

"on.lur¡u" 
against each and all paniesto this obrigation, as ro amount, riability and ail orher rrrings penaiiing th"r.to.

Every person furnishing material or performing labor in the performance of said contract, either as an individual, as a subcontmctoçoro¡herwise' shajl have the right tò sue on this bond in ¡he name 
"f 

*" crry 
"ichicago 

for his use andLnefit and in such suit said personas plaintiff' shall file a copJ| of this bon4 cerrified by rhe party or p"nio ¡" *hose charge this bond shall be, which copy sha, be, unressexecution thereof be denied under oath' prima facie evidence of rhe .*ou,ion 
"no 

oeriåry or,r,.'ãigr"¿, provided, that nothing in ttrisbond contained shall be tak9n, to makg trre ciry of chicago ti"bl. i;;; rutån*",o,, marerialman, tabo¡er or to any other person tö anygrcåter extent than it would have been liable prior to the enactnen, år ,r* public consrucüon Bond Acr, 30 ILCS 550, as a¡nended:provided furtheç that any person having a claim for labor a¡d materials ÀJti"¿ in the performance of this contracr shalr have no right ofaction unless he shall have filed u u"tifi"d notice of such claim with the cleJ of the ciry of cùcugo *i,rrin l g0 days after the dan" of rhelast item of work or the tumishing of the tast iæm of materiars, and shalr tr"ue n *iJä ;";;;ïJ; verified norice to ¡rre conrracrorwithin l0 days of the filing of the notice with the city of chicago- sucr, .laim shaü be verifr"j L¿ ,nu conrain rhe name and address oftt¡e claimant' the business addrcss of the claimant wiihin the soï oiluirro¡r,-ir *y, o, if the craimant be a foreign corporarion having noplace of búsiness with the state the principal place of businert_"r t"ia "à.poåil å.',jïii""#,.ii;"ä.rship ttre nan¡es and resideocesof each of the partners' the name or t¡"'too*""to. 
1* a9 city of ct i"'"go, r¡" name of ttre person, firm or corporation by whom theclaimant was employed or to whom such claimant furnished ;d.Ir: ;;: a¡nount of the ctaim and a brief description of the pubticimprovement for rhe constuction or iosrallation of which ,tr. "on*"ii, to u" p".ro.r.a. hovide* further, that no.defect in the noticehercin provided for shall deprive the claimant of his right 

"f 
.",i;;;;; Ë ;"* and provisions of this bond u¡rless it sha' afürmativeryappear that such defect has prejudiced the rights of-an interesæd prrry *.""¡og the same; provided, further, that no action shall bebrought until tlre expiration of ory t 

"¡or.a 
*å,y tizol days after tr," øæ of the last irem of *o.k o, oi ,¡" n *¡rt ing of the rast iæm ofmaærial' except in cllses where the final ttul"*eoì u"t*een the cit .¡ clú;"go and the contractor shalr have been made prior to rheexpiration of the 120 day period in which case action may be taten ¡mme¿i.,"ly fouo*ing such final settlement, and provided, ñ*theç thatno action of any kind shall be brought later than six (6) months after the .""".g*"" by the city of chicago of the completion of work.Any suit upon this bonä shatl be brought only in a circui; "; ; ,h" i"iã äi nï*¡r in tr* ¡uai"ii oroi"i ¡" which rhe conrracr sha' havebeen pcrformed.

The said surety' for value received' hereby stipulaæs and agrees that no change, extension of time, alæration or addition to the ¡ermsof any of the contract Dîît:"" comprising t"¡å 
"ont ""i;i;,Ë;;ï to be performed thereunder, shalr io anywise affect rhe

å:Ï#:ffH:f;i#: ï:i.' 
tre'e6v *Jue notice or anv such .r'"'e". *,"*ion or d¡ne, alærarion or addition to the ter¡ns or said

Am¡ovcd

nrrchaSngfuenr

Appmved as ro form ard legality:

(SeaI)

(Seål)

(S€al)

(S€al)

(S€a¡)

(S€å¡)



STATB OFILLINOIS,ì 
""COUNTY OF COOK, T *'

zo

È'É
UOz*
Fá*O

t¡{

a Notary Public in and for the County and Sute

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFy that hesident and

Secretary of

who a¡e personally known

such

to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed in the foregoing instrument.as

Secretary, appeared
before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of writing as

thei¡ free and voluntâry act, and as the free and voluntary act of the said
for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of .. , 20_

Notary Public

STATE OF ILLTNOIS,ì 
""COUNTY OF COOK, 

' 
""'

I,- , a Notary Public in and for the County and State

rd
11k
do
Êiúo
U
tu

f
F{
l¡lú
Þ
CN

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY

who_ personally known

to be the same person whose name- subscribed in the foregoing instrument as such

appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that

free and voluntary act, and as the freesigned, sealed and delivered the said inst¡ument of writing

and voluntary act of the

for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal ofsaid Company to be thereto attached.

rl
J3
Èa
U>z^
úz
Êr ¡-{tr

a Notary Public in and for the Counry and State

aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY rhar

who--------personally k¡own to me to be the same pêrsons whose name subscribed in the foregoing

instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he- signed, sealed and delivered the

said instrument of writing as- free and voluntâry act, for the uses and purposes therein set fonh.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20-

Notary Public

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial SeaI this_ day of

Notary Public

STATE OF ILLINOIS.ì --
COUNTY OF COOK, J ""'

GFC.160211-2&l



RIDER ÌO CO¡¡TRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

This Rider supplements contractor's Performance and payment Bond (,Bond") on that certaincontract with the city of chicago (-q¡q"l uear¡ng coñtract No.- and spêcification No.("contract')' surety acknowled-geò nát irre coniraã ràquires cìntractôito obtain from eachãiläsubcontractors consent to a conãrerar Ñiõ#;;r 
"r 

ffi;ðÃtäi;'ñiriibon,ractor ro tne õitv. rnecontract further grants the c¡ty th;;ónt, upän òãnüáàllrr defautt for faírure ro compry with chapter4-36 of the Municipal code of tne ciiy, ano gt nã ó[L sore option, to i"¡," over and comprete thework to be performed by contractor-tnrougn tnã ðt,t'; assumption of some or all of contractor,ssubcontracts' lf the c¡ty, in its sole discretión, ;;"r"¡ilr this right, thenêurety waives any rights itmav:have to cure contiactor's default ov p"/oiÀJnöiñ" *orx ñ.ãriåi t¡.ugh others and remainsbound by its other obligatíons under the Bond. 
v 'vv'^ rrùerr L'r trrr(



EXHIBIT 7

Contractor Affidavit

Contractor Name:
Special Service Area Number:
Agreement ("Agreement,):

Agreement between the City of Chicago and

The undersigned,
of
year

time.

dated
, relating to the provision of special ,*i."r.

AFFIDA\rIT

, and on behalf
having been duly swom under oath, certifies that in therçr u¡lLrl, ççflules lnat m tit performed that pofion of the services described in Exhibit 1 of tI of the!/\¡uu¡t r vl lllç

*-tl":Ï*tjn accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to the extent described in the attached9U ¡II LIIU 4LL¿¡,UIIç(I

ili*r-ix:i:':Iï 1d ,l?, 
': spent thla porrion of tunds obtaineJ from rhe cirv inu v¡¡¡ t¡¡w vt LJ uI

.ttÏ::l:1,*jtl,tlit Agreement on the services described in Exhibit t, to the extent described in

prescribed by the city and shall contain such level of detail as the city may require from time to

Nothing in this Affidavit may be cgnstryed as limiting contractor's obligations under theAgreement. All terms not defined in this Affidavit will be äs defined in the Agreement.

under penalty of perjury, I certiff that I am authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of thecontractor, that I have personal knowledge of the certifications made in this Affidavit, and thatthey are true and correct.

NAME OF CONTRACTOR:

Signature of Authorized Officer

Name of Authorized Officer (print orlype)

State of

County of



Sworn to and acknowledged before me by
signatoryl as _ [title] of_
contracting parfy] this _ day of ,20

Signature ofNotary

[name of
[name of



EXHIBIT 8

Special Service Area - Additional Audit Requirements

Accounting Svstem

The Department requires that the Contractor maintain its accounting system in a manner which
allows the Contractor's expenditures to be categorized in its statement of activities according to
the categories listed in the budget approved by the city for each Area.

The Contractor must use the following guidelines for engaging a qualified CpA Firm:

1. Issue a Request for Proposal ("RI'P") that sets forth all of the terms and conditions of the
engagement, evaluation criteria, and scope of the work required.
2. Distribute and publicize the RFP sufficiently to ensure full and open competition.
3. Request in the RFP that bidders provide detail on:

a. How the CPA Firm will conduct the audit in the first and any subsequent years.
b. Qualif,rcations of the CPA Firm, management, and staff, includingexperience in

auditing like entities.
c. Policies on notification of changes in key personnel.
d. whether the proposed staff has received continuing professional education during

the previous 2 years.
e. Whether the CPA Firm has
f. Whether the CPA Firm

standards.
g. Whether the CPA Firm has

past 3 years.
h. Confirmation the CPA Firm maintains an active license in the State of Illinois and

attached a copy of a current license with the RFp response.
i. Confirmation the CPA Firm is not on the City's debarred vendor list.j. The audit fee.

4. Evaluate the proposals based on:

received a positive peer review within the last 3 years.
is independent, as defined by applicable auditing

been the object of any disciplinary action during the

a.

b.

The CPA Firm's understanding of the audit requirements, including the needs of
the Area and the final products to be delivered.
soundness of technical approach to the audit, including the meeting of the
Contractor's specifìc deadlines and other requirements.
Qualifications of the CPA Firm.
Qualifications of the audit team.
The information provided by respondents in response to the RFp, including cost
and independence.

c.

d.

e.



5. Rate the proposals as follows:
a. Proposals should be evaluated as submitted.
b. Make a list of strengths and weaknesses for each
c. Review the proposed fees offered by the bidders

evaluation.
Ask questions of the bidders to eliminate any ambiguities.
Select a proposal that is most advantageous to the Area based on the evaluation
criteria set forth in the RFp.

6' once a CPA Firm is chosen based upon the foregoing criteria, require a written
engagement letter to avoid misunderstandings that specifies:

a. Audit scope, objectives, and purposes.
b. Deadlines for the work to be performed.
c. Audit fees.
d. Report format, including providing a PDF digital version of the final audit.e. Type and timing of support to be provided to the CPA Firm by the SSAC.f. Professional auditing standards to be followed in performing ihe audit.g. Independence of the CpA Firm to the SSAC.
h. Terms of making changes to the scope of the agreement.

i' CPA Firm's ownership of the work papers, retention period, and
requirement for availability to the City upon request.

Summary Schedule of Findings.

In order to properly conduct the certified audit of the books and records of the Contractor, it is
necessary for the CPA Firm to read and understand the requirements contained in the Agreement.
Particular attention should be given to Sections 3 and s of the Agreement.

The CPA Firm must test the Contractor's compliance with the requirements contained in the
Agreement. Should the CPA Firm find exception to the requiremenis of the Agreement, it must
disclose all exceptions in a separate schedule, which shall be entitled',Summary Schedule of
Findings". Each fìnding shall be listed separately. The schedule shall be incorporated with the
other required financial statements.

d.

e.

to support its technical rating.
after completion of the technical

requirements, it shall still include a
CPA Firm shall make an affirmative
conducting the audit, has determined

If the CPA Firm finds no exceptions to the Agreement
"Summary Schedule of Findings,'. On that schedule the
statement indicating it has read the Agreement and, after
that no exceptions were noted.

Subsections to note in Section 5 include:
a' Section 5.01, Basis of Paymenl, describes "carr¡/ over" as the amount of Service

Tax Funds collected for prior tax years which remain previously unspent.



b. Section 5.02, Budget for Services, restricts the maximum amount that may be
spent in a calendar year to the amount stated in the Agreement.

c. Section 5.03, Method of Payment, states that the Contractor shall establish a
separate checking account and that Area funds shall not be commingled with other sources.

Audit of Financial Statements

As discussed in Section 3.07, "Records and Audits", the Contractor shall provide an annual
audited financiâl statement to the Department and SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end
of the calendar year and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices, consistently applied throughout.

Audit Documents
The City requires an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
to include the following documents:

l. Statement of Financial Position.
2. Statement of Activities: Budget and Actual (period being audited compared to the
previous year, e.g. columns should be 2010 Budget,2010 Actual, Variance,2009 Budget,2009
Actual, Variance).
3. Statement of Cash Flows.
4. Notes to the Financial Statements.
5. Summary Schedule of Findings that also includes the management response to any audit
findings and any subsequent CPA Firm and/or City's andlor management responses until the
CPA Firm andlor the City consider the findings suff,rciently remedied.

Expense descriptions included in the Statement of Activities must correspond to the expense
descriptions in the budget submitted to the City.

CPA Firm License

The CPA Firm shall attach as an exhibit to the audit the frrm's active license in the State of
Illinois.

Audit Presentations

The CPA Firm shall attend at least one (1) SSAC meeting and be available for other meetings as
requested by the City to present the draft and/or final audit and respond to questions.

Debarment

Upon issuance of the final audit, the CPA Firm shall confirm it is not on the City's debarred
vendor list.



EXHIBIT 9

PLA
(See Attached)



CITY OF CHICAGO

MULTI- PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT.

This Model Multi-Project Labrjr Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between City
of Chicago, an lllinois municipal corporation, as owner, on behatf of itself and eaci of its contractori,
subcontractors of whatsoever tier performing construction work on any project to which this Agreøneni
shall be applicable, and each of the undersigned labor organizations signatory hereto.

Whereas, Owner is responsible for construction, demolition, rehabititation, maintenance, and/or
renovation of real property located in Chicago, Illinois; Due to the size, scope, cost and duration of the
multitude of Projects traditionally performed by the City of Chicago, the pariies to this Agreemenr have
determined that it is in their interest to have these Projects compteted in the most timeiy, productive,
economical and orderly manner possible, and withou¡labor disruptions of any kind that migirt interfere
with, or delay, any of these Projects;

- 
Whereas, the parties have determined that it is desirable to eliminate the potentiat for friction and

disruptio.n of these Projects by using their best efforts and ensuring that altwork is performed by the rade
unions that are sig.natory hereto and which have traditionalty performed and havC trade and geographic
jurisdiction over süch work. Experience has proven the vatue äf such cooperation, and that such mutual
undenakings should be maintained, and if possible, strengthened, and that the ultimate beneficiaries
remain the Owner of the project; and,

Whereas, the Owner acknowledges that it has a serious and ongoing concern regarding labor
relations associated with the Projects and through its comptetion inespective of the e;isten; of a
collective bargaining relationship with any of the signatory.labor organizations.

ÑOW fHEREFORE, in order to furthe'r these goals and objectives and to maintain the spirit of
harmony, labor-management cooperation and stability, the parties agree as follows:

l. During the term of this Agreement, Owner its representatives and agents shalt not
contract or subcontract, nor permit any other person, firm, company, or entity to contract
or subconFact, any construction, démolition, rehabilitation or renovation work for the
Project work covered under this Agreeinent or within the trade jurisdiction of the
signatory labor organization, to be,performed at the Site of construction or off-site sotely
for installation at the Site (includihg all tenant improvements, if applicable), untess such
work is performed only by a person, fìrm or company signatory,.or willing to become
signatory, to the applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreement(s) with the
union(s) or the appropriate trade/craft union(s) or subordinate body or affiliate of the
Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council ("Council") or the
Teamsters' Joint " Council No. 25, Copies of all such current coltective bargaining
agreements constitute Appendix "4" of this Agreement, attached hereto and made an
integral part hereof, and as may be modified from time to time during the term of this
Agreement. Said provisions of this Agreement shall be included in all Requests for Bids
and/or Proposals and shall be explicitly included in atl contracts or subcontracts of
whatsoever tier by.all contractors and subcontractors; provided that the total Project value
exceeds $25,000.0b. tn no event shatt contracts be "sptit" so'as to avoid the apilicability
of this Agreement. In the.event a dispute arises with respect to rhe applicaUilìty of thís
Multi-Project l¡bor Agreement to a particular projec! the parties agree to submit said
dispute to final and binding arbitration .before a Permanent Umpire who shall be
rnutually agreed to by the parties.



2_ Wi,i ,ofo, to a coltracto.'- ,uU"ontractor who is ,f," S¡"""rrnrl bidder, but is not
signatory to the applicable cotlective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreemen(s) executed by said"bidder shall be thi relevant'area-wide agre"ñr"n4s¡
rCsülätiñE"õlgoùérö¡ñg wãgðs,-hourland öther tèrmi äñ¿t-ðõñalilioñs of¿rplãi,ù:ï:-:'-':-ì

During the term of this Agreemen! the Owner or any Project contractor and suh.
contractorshall engage in no lockout.

During the term of this Agreement, no labor organization signatory hereto, or any of its
members, ofTicers, stewards, aqents, represeñtatives, or lmptéyees sÉall ¡nitigaie,
authorize, support, ianction, maintain, or participate in any sú¡ke, walkout, iork
stoPpage' work slowdown, work curtailment, cessation or interruption of produai¡on, o,
In Tf. picketing of any Site covered under this Agreement for any reason whatsoever,
including but rlot limited to the expiration of any oñhê collective bãrgaining agreements
referred to on Appendix A. ln the event of anãconomic strike or otñerjoüu.üon upon
the termination of an existing coltective bargaining agreement, in no lvent sha¡ äny
adverse ijob action be.directed against uny couei"a Project. Ail provisionr ãf ii"
subsequently negotiated collective bargaining agreement rttuU U" retroactive for all
emplgyees- working at a Project Site, proviãed such a provision for r"trou"tiuity 1,
contained in the newly negotiated collective bargaining ugt""rent.

Each_union signatory hereto agrees that it will use its best efforts to þrevent any of the
acts forbidden in Paragraph 4, and that in the event any such act takes i1."" o, is engaged
in by any employee or group of employees, each union signatory hereto further åËothat it will use its best efforts (including its full disciplinary power under its Constitution
and/o¡ By-Laws) to cause an immediatscessation thereof.

Any contractor of subcontractor signatory or otherwise bound stipulated or required to
1þia.e.þr and to any provisions of this Agreement shall have the right to discírarge or
discipline. any employee who vio-lates the þrovisions of this Agreement. Such discñarge
or discipline by a contractor or subcontractór shall be subject toih" Griruance/Arbitration
procedure of the applicable collective bargaining agr.eement only as to the flact of such
employee's violation of this Agreement. If such fu"i ìs establishãd, the penalty imposed
shall not be disturbed. Work at any Site covered under this Agreement shalt continue
without disruption or hindrance of any kind during¡any GrievanceT'Arbitration pro*øure.

The parties expressty uuttor¡t" a courl of competent jurisdiction to order appropriate
injunctive relief to restrain any violation of this Aþemõnt, any form of self-heip r"r"àv
is expressly forbidden. Nothing in the foregoing shall restrict any parry to òtherwisã
iiudicially-enforce any provision of its collective bãrgaining agreement-between any labor
organization and a contactor with whom it has a collecüve Uargaining relationshipl

This Agreement shall become effective, and shatl be included in alt Requests for pro-
posals and/or Bids, all Purchase Orders, Contracts or other arangements issued by the
city of Chicago for work described in Paragraph I above immedialely subsequent io the
ratification of the ordinance authorizing thii Ìriulti-Project Labor Agieement by the City
Council.

This Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2016 and shall be automatica¡y extended
for an additional five (5) year term unless the parties issue à notice to terminate between
sixty (60) and (30) days prior to the initiat expiration date.

3.

4.

5.

7.

8.

9.



r0. In the event a dispute shalt arise bètween any contractor or subcontractor ofthe project
and any s¡gnatory labor organization andlor fringe benefit fund established under.r,v of
l!,'_-:fPï9".^!_gllïlilg-Þgggi"j1e.asleprygttt_3,s, t".tjg_eblis-alion unar- pay'"i ãr
f;insê benerii èöntiîtiuî¡ô ns piõvìdéä u;æ;næôi¡ecü* b*;a i 

" 
¡ 

" 
J'ràr""*¡Éï;; øproper notice to the contracto(s) or subcontractor(s) by the applicable laúr org"nir.ton

or fringe benefit fund and to the contractor or su'bcãntractåi, an amount sufäcient þ
satisfu the amount claimed shall be withheld from the contracto¡,s or subcontracto¡,s
regularly scheduled periodic Payment from the contractor or subcontråctor, or their
agents until such time as said claim is resolved.

ln the event of a jurisdjctional dispute by.and between any labor organizations signatory
hereto, such labor organizations shail take âll steps.nec"*ury-to p-rprl-y resolve the ä'¡5|;ag.
In the event of a dispute relating to trade or work jurisiiction, ail parties, ¡ncluoná.ìüe
ønployers, contractors or slbcontractors. agree that ã final and bindirrg resolut¡on À? the
dispute shall be resolved as follows:

Representatives of the affected trades shall meet on the job site within forty-eight (4E)
hours after receiving notice in an effort to resolve the d-ispute, (ln the euent thãre ìs a
dispute between local unions affiliated with the same IntemåtionaiUnion, the decision of
the General President,.or- his/her designee, as the intemal jurisdictional authority of tt 

"tInternational Union, shall consfîtute a find and binding deiision and determinuríon *io-
the jurisdiction of work.)

tf no senlement is achieved 
-subsequent to the preceding Paragraph, the matter shall be

referred to the Chicago & Cook County Building ¿ Constnict¡on fra¿o Councit, which shall
meet with the affected 

,trades 
with in 

-forty-eight 
(af¡ nours subsequenr to receiving notice. An

agreement reached at rhis Srep shall be final and binding..

If no- settlement agreements is reached during the proceedings contemplated by paragrâph',,",,
or "b" aboræ, the matter shall be immedlately- referred 1o tne Joint Conference Board,
established by the standard Agreement between ihe construction EmployeJ Àr.r"ì",¡"" ."¿
the Chicago & Cook County Building & Constn¡ction Trades óouncil, which may be
amended from time to time, for final and binding ruolution of said dispute. said Sraídard
Agreement is auached hereto as Appendix r'B-" and specifically in"'orporatf 1¡¡," ,h¡;
Agreement.

't
This Agreement shall be incorporated iñto and become part of the coltective bargaining
agreements between the Unions s¡gnatory hereto and contractors and subcontraa-ors. lithe event of any inconsistency between ihis Ag.eement and any collective Uargaining
agreement, the terms of this Agreement shalt supersede and prevail except fo, 

"íl 
*o.f

performed under the Ñt 4n¡.t;t of Agreement, rhe Narional ötack/Chirn.y egr"r*i
the N.ational cooling Tower Agreement, a[ instrument calibrafion *íl ;"J i;;;
checking shall be performed under the terms of the uA/IBEW Joint National Agree*entfor instrument and Controt Systems Technicians, and the Nationat Rgreemeñt 

"i ;i;International Union of Elevator Constructors with the exception of the content and
subject matter of Articles V, VI and VII of the AFL-CIO's Building & Construcrion
Trades Department model project l^abor Agreement.

Tlre parties agree that in the implementation and administrat¡on of this Agreement, it isvitally necessary to maintain effective and immediate communicarion ,o is to minimize
the potential of labor relati'ons disputes arising out of this Agreernent. To that end, each
party hereto agrees to designate, in writing, a representative-to whom probtems;b"

I t.

a.)

b.)

c.)

12.

t3.



' directed which máy^"iir. ãuring thc rerm oi this Átr*i.nt. within forty-eight (48)
hours-after notice of the existence of ariy probtem, representat¡ves of each pañy shall

-meet to discuss and, where possible, resolVe such problems. The representat¡ve of the**"--signatory 
tlniõñs'Shãllte'TñõñãS-VillânoVá,"öihiS-ddsigneÇ'PiêSiiteirt of the Chicãþ&

Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council. îhe representarive of Owner
shall be the Corporation Counsel or hiVt¡er designee.

14- If any provision, section, subsection or other portion of this Agreement shall be
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, íllegal, or unenforceabte
in whole or in part, and such de-termination shall become final, such provision or port¡on
shall be deemed to be severed br limited; but onty to the extent required to render the
remaining provisions and portions of this Agreement enforceabte. This Agreement, as
thus âmended, shall be enforced so as to give effect to the intention of the parties insofar
as that is possible. In ¿ddition, the parties hereby expressly empower a court of competent ''
jurisdiction to modifr any term or provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to
comply with existing law and to enforce this Agreement as modified-

15' Owner and General Contractor, on behalf of themselves and their contractors and
subcontractors agree that the applicable substance abuse policy (i.e., drug alcohol, etc.)
applicable to the'employees working on any covered Project shalt be that as contained, or
otherwise provided for, in the area-wide collective bargaining agreements attached at
Appendix "4" to this Agreement. Nothing in the foregoing shall limit the Owners and/or
General Contractor, its contractors or subcontractors from instituting its own substance
abuse policy governing othêr employees performing work on a Project not otherwise
covered under this Agreement. In the event there is no substance abuse policy in the
applicable collective bargaining agreement, the policy adopted by the Ownen andlor
General Contractor may appfy.

16. The parties recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the building and construction
trades of veterans who are interested in careers in the building and construction industry.
The parties agree to utilize the services of the- Center for .Military RecruitmenÇ
Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter referred to as'the "Center") and the
Center's Helmets to Hardhats" program to service as a resource. for pretiminary'
orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, referrat to apprenticeship programs or
hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, support network, emptoyment opportunlt¡es,aîd

. other needs as identified by the parties.. The parties also agree to cooràinate with the
Center to create and maintain an integrated database of veterans interested in working on
this project and of apprenticeship and employment opportunities for these Projects. To
the extent permitted by law, the parties will give appropriate credit to such veterans for
bona fide, provable past experience, in the building and construction industry.

The parties recognize the importance of facilitating the goals and objectives of the
Apprenticeship & Training Initiative agreed to by the parties in separate cottective
bargaining agreements applicable to employees of the Owner. Additionally, parties agree
to incorporate the duties and responsibilities associated with the Supptementat Addenðum
to the Multi-Project Labor Agreem'ent between the signatory taboi organizations and the
Ghicago Public Schools attâched hereto in Appendix 'tC" and incorporated herein.
Towards these ends, the undersigned labor organizations will assist and cooperate w¡th
the Owner, the Chicago Public Schoolg City Colleges and contractors in monitoring and
enforcing ,the foregoing comm¡tments, including providing relevant information
requested by the Owner for the purpose of such monitoring and enforcement, including



...'.._.,'.''',"''-.
the^information provided.for in paragraph 3(E) of tne;ôupjrerental Addendum withcPS' upon execution of this AgreemJnt,'represenrarives of-ri¡e ó;;;; ";ï,i. öir¡åË"Building Trades Councit will immediaiely meer ror tf,e'putpóse or esrablishing rhe:'-sp'ciFcmechanisrn bywhichrhisinftlrmatiãn wiII uegnneËa;frrocessed ând re'nrnd

The parties hereto agiee 
.and -acknowledge that the commitments set forth herein,includinglhose in the attached Appendix "õ" are intérdependent. ln rt.-"u;;irü;;1;

and commitments set forth in Apþndix "C" are not realized, the City shall bring th¡s tothe attèntion of the Chicago Building Trades Councit ("councit,'), and the parries sha¡immediately meet for the purpose of identifuing the causelsi'oi sa¡¿ failure andimplement necessary measures to remedy the iailûre. should ihe council,s afTiliaremembers refuse to impled,ent measures reasonabty necessary to realize these goals and
commitmentt,-,!9_C¡ty may termìnate this Agreement subsequent to January IJ,20¡3. If,
as of June 1,2012, theCity believes that thã Council'saffií¡ate members have failed to- implement measures reasonabty necessary ,o Ãu¡¡r. these goats and commitments, theCity may at that time deliver to the councit formal written notice of ¡ntent to terminatethis Agreement on January l' 20.13. Upon deliverance of such notice, the parties shall
immediately meet to crafl and implement additional measures to remeáy such faiture. lfthe parties are unsuccessful. in- imptementing satisfactory r""ru."r, the C¡ty mayimplement said notice of termination on January-|,2013.

The parties acknowledge the Residency requirement for employees of contractors and
subcontractois in the standard .city 9f 

-ct 
icàgo construction coñtract. The partíes atso

agree to cooperat¡vely work and monitor compliance with these requirements and to work
cooperatively to facilitate and work in good faith to the achie""r"nr of said ,eqriieã
Residency provision including union attJndance at pre-bid conferences with prospective'contractors and subcontractors as well as other reaionable undertakings to ierônrtrute
progress in this regard.

l7 ' The parties agree that contractors and subcontractors working under the provisions of thisAeree¡]e¡t shall be required to strive to utilize the maximurn number åf apprentices onsaid Project as permitied under the appticable cotlective uarta;ning agreemenr as
ontained in Appendix .,A".

l8' This document, with each of .the Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement of theparties and may not be modified or changed except by the subsequent t"i¡n"n agreement
ofthe parties.

. 19' All parties represent that they have the fult legat authority to enter into this Agreement.

Ih: undersigned, as the owner and Labor organizarions on the project, agree to all of the terms
and conditions contained in this Agreement.

. Dated this the 9'b day of February,20r r in chicago, cook couñt¡ ilrinois.

On behalf of Owner:



Duly Authorized OfTïcer of the City of Chicago

On behalf of

(lnsert Name of Labor Organization)

hs Duly Authorized Oflicer



Exhibit 1 and hereby made a part hereof (the "service Provider Agreement"), and such other
supportíng documents, if any, as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions
of the Servíce Provider Agreement, with such changes, deletions and insertions as shall be
approved by the persons executing the Service Provider Agreement.

SECTION 4. Severabilitv. lf any provision of this ordinance or the application of any
such provision to any person or circumstances shall be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect
the provisions or application of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end each provision of this ordinance is declared to be
severable.

SECTION 5. Conflict. This ordinance shall control over any provision of any other
ordinance, resolution, motion or order in conflict with this ordinance, to the extent of such
conflict.

SECTION 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and
approval.

-3-

S:\SHARED\Finance\SSAs\SSA-2O1 2\SSA8\SSA8-201 2 Finat.doc




